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This report on Form 10-K contains forward-lookirigtements that are based on assumptions and meaybeéefiture plans, strategies and
expectations of BCB Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaiiéss document may include forward-looking statetaevithin the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and

Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193wse forward-looking statements, which are basecertain assumptions and describe
future plans, strategies, and expectations of haany, are generally identified by use of the wdahticipate,” "believe," "estimate,"
"expect,” "intend,"” "plan," "project," "seek," "ste," "try," or future or conditional verbs such'asill," "would," "should," "could," "may," or
similar expressions. Although we believe that danp, intentions and expectations, as reflectedeéne forward-looking statements are
reasonable, we can give no assurance that thase piéentions or expectations will be achievedeatized. By identifying these statements
for you in this manner, we are alerting you to plossibility that our actual results and financiahdition may differ, possibly materially, from
the anticipated results and financial conditioriéated in these forward-looking statements. Impurtactors that could cause our actual
results and financial condition to differ from tleasdicated in the forward-looking statements ideluamong others, those discussed below
and under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of tAisnual Report on Form 10-K. You should not placeue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which reflect our expectationly as of the date of this report. We do not assany obligation to revise forwatdeking
statements except as may be required by law.



PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS BCB

Bancorp, Inc.

BCB Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a New Jersenporation, which on May 1, 2003 became the holdioignpany parent of BCB
Community Bank (the "Bank"). The Company has nafagred in any significant business activity othantiowning all of the outstanding
common stock of BCB Community Bank. Our executiffece is located at 104-110 Avenue C, Bayonne, Newsey 07002. Our telephone
number is (201) 828700. At December 31, 2008 we had $578.6 milliondnsolidated assets, $410.5 million in deposits®49.7 million ir
consolidated stockholders' equity. The Companulgext to extensive regulation by the Board of Gowes of the Federal Reserve System.

BCB Community Bank

BCB Community Bank, formerly known as Bayonne ComityuBank, was chartered as a New Jersey bank ¢ob@c27, 2000, and we
opened for business on November 1, 2000. We chamgiedame from Bayonne Community Bank to BCB ComityuBank in April of 2007
We operate through three branches in Bayonne ahdlkém, New Jersey and through our executive officated at 104-110 Avenue C,
Bayonne, New Jersey 07002. Our deposit accountsisuieed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpmratnd we are a member of the
Federal Home Loan Bank System.

We are a community-oriented financial instituti@ur business is to offer FDIC-insured deposit poisiand to invest funds held in deposit
accounts at the Bank, together with funds generfatad operations, in investment securities and $o&¥e offer our customers:

o loans, including commercial and multi-family restate loans, one- to four-family mortgage lo&wsne equity loans, construction loans,
consumer loans and commercial business loanscémteears the primary growth in our loan portfdias been in loans secured by
commercial real estate and multi-family properties;

o FDIC-insured deposit products, including saviagd club accounts, non-interest bearing accourdaggmarket accounts, certificates of
deposit and individual retirement accounts; and

o retail and commercial banking services includinge transfers, money orders, traveler's checKs, daposit boxes, a night depository,
federal payroll tax deposits, bond coupon redempiod automated teller services.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to operate as a wellaagatl, profitable and independent community-ogedrfinancial institution dedicated to
providing quality customer service. Managementd'the Board of Directors' extensive knowledge efltudson County market
differentiates us from our competitors. Our busingtsategy incorporates the following elements:ntading a community focus, focusing on
profitability, continuing our growth,



concentrating on real estate based lending, cagitglon market dynamics, providing attentive aedspnalized service and attracting highly
qualified and experienced personnel.

Maintaining a community focus. Our management aodr8 of Directors have strong ties to the Bayororaraunity. Many members of the
management team are Bayonne natives and are active community through non-profit board membgushical business development
organizations, and industry associations. In aaldjtour board members are well established prafeals and business people in the Bayonne
area. Management and the Board are interestedkingia lasting contribution to the Bayonne commyiaitd have succeeded in attracting
deposits and loans through attentive and persathfiervice.

Focusing on profitability. On an operational bagis,achieved profitability in our tenth month ofesation. For the year ended December 31,
2008, our return on average equity was 7.00% andedurn on average assets was 0.60%. Our earpargdiluted share decreased from
$0.93 for the year ended December 31, 2004 to $0rahe year ended December 31, 2008. Althoughiegs per share results have come
under pressure recently, primarily as a resulhefgervasive economic downturn in both the natiandllocal economy as well as several
one-time events, management is committed to maintaprofitability by diversifying the products,iping and services we offer.

Continuing our growth. We have consistently incegbsur assets. From December 31, 2004 to Decemihb@088, our assets have increased
from $378.3 million to $578.6 million. Over the samme period, our loan balances have increased $46.4 million to $406.8 million,
while deposits have increased from $337.2 millm$410.5 million. In addition, we have maintained asset quality ratios while growing
loan portfolio. At December 31, 2008, our non-parfing assets to total assets ratio was 0.89%.

Concentrating on real estate-based lending. A pirftcus of our business strategy is to originasnk secured by commercial and multi-
family properties. Such loans provide higher resuitran loans secured by one- to four-family retdtes As a result of our underwriting
practices, including debt service requirementctnmercial real estate and multi-family loans, nggmaent believes that such loans offer us
an opportunity to obtain higher returns.

Capitalizing on market dynamics. The consolidatibthe banking industry in Hudson County has cr#ite need for a customer focused
banking institution. This consolidation has movedidion making away from local, community-basedksaie much larger banks
headquartered outside of New Jersey.

Providing attentive and personalized service. Manant believes that providing attentive and persosdservice is the key to gaining
deposit and loan relationships in Bayonne anduitsosinding communities. Since we began operatiomspranches have been open seve
days a week.

Attracting highly experienced and qualified perselnn important part of our strategy is to hirakars who have prior experience in the
Hudson County market as well as pre-existing bissimelationships. Our management team has an avef&f years of banking experience,
while our lenders and branch personnel have saarifiprior experience at community banks and redibanks in Hudson County.
Management believes that its knowledge of the Hnd3ounty market has been a critical element irstlezess of BCB Community Bank.
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Management's extensive knowledge of the local conities has allowed us to develop and implemengalhifocused and disciplined
approach to lending and has enabled the Bankraca# high percentage of low cost deposits.

Recent Market Developments

In response to the financial crises affecting theking system and financial markets and going conttegeats to investment banks and other
financial institutions, on October 3, 2008, the Egesicy Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the "EEpBwas signed into law. Under the
EESA, the U.S. Department of the Treasury was gilierauthority to, among other things, purchastou¥ 00 billion of securities and
certain other financial instruments from finandredtitutions for the purpose of stabilizing andyading liquidity to the U.S. financial marke

On October 14, 2008, the Treasury Department aroeslia Capital Purchase Program under which it wactplire equity investments,
usually preferred stock, in banks and thrifts arartholding companies. In conjunction with theghase of preferred stock, the Treasury
Department also received warrants to purchase constozk from participating financial institutiorRarticipating financial institutions also
were required to adopt the Treasury Departmeratredsirds for executive compensation and corporatergance for the period during which
the department holds equity issued under the Gapitehase Program. We have determined that wednaatl participate in the Capital
Purchase Program.

On November 21, 2008, the FDIC adopted a final relating to a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Progravhich the FDIC had previously
announced as an initiative to counter the systedewrisis in the nation's financial sector. Undher Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program
the FDIC will (i) guarantee, through the earliemaditurity or June 30, 2012, certain newly issuedosaunsecured debt issued by participating
institutions on or after October 14, 2008, and keeflune 30, 2009 and (ii) provide full FDIC depass#turance coverage for non-interest
bearing transaction deposit accounts, NegotiabteeQof Withdrawal ("NOW") accounts paying less tia5% interest per annum and certain
other accounts held at participating FGOIGured institutions through December 31, 2009.€Cage under the Temporary Liquidity Guarar
Program was available for the first 30 days withchdarge. The fee assessment for coverage of semseicured debt ranges from 50 basis
points to 100 basis points per annum, dependinth@initial maturity of the debt. The fee assessnfmmndeposit insurance coverage is 10
basis points per quarter on amounts in covereduets@xceeding $250,000. We have elected to paatiin the deposit insurance program.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 20BRRA"), more commonly known as the economic stiasuor economic recovery
package, was signed into law on February 17, 200®resident Obama. ARRA includes a wide varietgrofjrams intended to stimulate the
economy and provide for extensive infrastructurergy, health, and education needs. In additionrR ARnposes certain new executive
compensation and corporate expenditure limits bauatent and future TARP recipients until the piéent has repaid the Treasury, which is
now permitted under ARRA without penalty and withthe need to raise new capital, subject to the@dug/'s consultation with the
recipient's appropriate regulatory agency.

For further information regarding regulatory andistative developments affecting our business Segérvision and Regulation".
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Our Market Area

We are located in the City of Bayonne and Hobok&rgson County, New Jersey. The Bank's locationgas#éy accessible to provide
convenient services to businesses and individhateighout our market area.

Our market area includes the City of Bayonne, Je@ty and portions of Hoboken, New Jersey. Thesasare all considered "bedroom" or
"commuter" communities to Manhattan. Our marketasewell-served by a network of arterial roadwenguding Route 440 and the New
Jersey Turnpike.

Our market area has a high level of commerciali®ss activity. Businesses are concentrated inetivice sector and retail trade areas. M
employers in our market area include Bayonne Médeater and the Bayonne Board of Education.

Competition

The banking business in New Jersey is extremelypetitive. We compete for deposits and loans witistaag New Jersey and out-of-state
financial institutions that have longer operatingtdries, larger capital reserves and more estaadi€ustomer bases. Our competition incli
large financial service companies and other estitieaddition to traditional banking institutionsch as savings and loan associations, saving:
banks, commercial banks and credit unions.

Our larger competitors have a greater ability bafice wide-ranging advertising campaigns througlr tireater capital resources. Our
marketing efforts depend heavily upon referralenfrafficers, directors, stockholders, selective atisiag in local media and direct mail
solicitations. We compete for business principalhythe basis of personal service to customerspmestaccess to our officers and directors
and competitive interest rates and fees.

In the financial services industry in recent yearense market demands, technological and regylateanges and economic pressures have
eroded industry classifications that were oncerbjatefined. Banks have diversified their servidesreased rates paid on deposits and
become more cost effective as a result of compatitith one another and with new types of finans@&lice companies, including non-
banking competitors. Some of the results of theagket dynamics in the financial services industiyédhbeen a number of new bank and non-
bank competitors, increased merger activity, acdeimsed customer awareness of product and seiffieeesdces among competitors.
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Lending Activities

Analysis of Loan Portfolio. Set forth below is setkdd data relating to the composition of our loartfplio by type of loan as a percentage of

the respective portfolio.

Type of loans:
Real estate loans:

One- to four-family....... $74,039 17.94%
Construction . 62,483 15.14
Home equity............... 38,065 9.22
Commercial and

multi-family ........... 223,179 54.07
Commercial business......... 14,098 3.42
Consumer.........ccceeen. 920 0.21
Total..cccoveveienne 412,784 100.00%
Less:
Deferred loan fees, net..... 654
Allowance for loan losses... 5,304

Total loans, net.. $406,826

At December 31,

2007 2006 20

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount

(Dollars in Thousands)

$55,248 14.96% $43,993 13.64% $ 34,901
49,984 1353 38,882 12.06 28,743
35,397 9.58 32,321 10.02 24,297

208,108 56.35 192,141 59.60 185,170
19,873 538 14,705 456 14,578
739  0.20 396 0.12 456

369,349 100.00% 322,438 100.00% 288,145

630 575 604
4,065 3,733 3,090
$364,654 $318,130 $284,451

Percent Amount Percent

12.11% $ 34,855 13.98%
9.98 19,209 7.70
8.43 20,629 8.27

64.26 158,755 63.68
5.06 15,123 6.07
0.16 744  0.30

100.00% 249,315 100.00%
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Loan Maturities. The following table sets forth t@ntractual maturity of our loan portfolio at Dedeer 31, 2008. The amount shown
represents outstanding principal balances. Demaants| loans having no stated schedule of repaymedtso stated maturity and overdrafts
are reported as being due in one year or lessablarrate loans are shown as due at the time atheg. The table does not include
prepayments or scheduled principal repayments.

Due after 1
Due within through  Due after
1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total

(In Thousands)

One- to four-family................ $ 5,845 $ 7,999 $ 60,195 $ 74,039
Construction 51,048 8,750 2,685 62,483
Home equity 75 5,314 32,676 38,065
Commercial and multi-family........ 28,821 38,293 156,065 223,179
Commercial business................ 1,890 8,010 4,198 14,098
(070141510 =7 S 487 433 -- 920

Total amount due................... $ 88,166 $ 68,799 $255,819 $412,784

Loans with Predetermined or Floating or AdjustaRéges of Interest. The following table sets fott tlollar amount of all loans at December
31, 2008 that are due after December 31, 2008hawe predetermined interest rates and that haa#rftpor adjustable interest rates.

Floating or
Fixed Rates Adjustable Rates Total
(In Thousands)

One- to four-family....................... $ 33,421 $ 34,773 $ 68,194
CONStruCtion.........ccuveeeeviiiienenne 1,835 9,600 11,435
Home equity........c.ccoueeiiiieenirens 31,128 6,862 37,990
Commercial and multi-family............... 44,312 150,046 194,358
Commercial business 4,058 8,150 12,208

CONSUMET ...cvviviieieeeeeeeieeeiieiee 433 -- 433

Total amount due..............ccoceeeee $1 15,187 $209,431 $324,618

The Bank has strengthened certain loan underwritiitgria in an effort to more prudently make |danility determinations and mitigate
increased potential loan loss provisions prospebtiv

Commercial and Multi-family Real Estate Loans. @ammercial and multi-family real estate loans &eused by commercial real estate (for
example, shopping centers, medical buildings, Iretéices) and multi-family residential units, casisng of five or more units. Permanent
loans on commercial and multi-family properties ge@erally originated in amounts up to 75% of thpraised value of the property. Our
commercial real estate loans are secured by imgrpxegperty such as office buildings, retail storearehouses, church buildings and other
non-residential buildings. Commercial and multi-fgrmeal estate loans are generally made at raggsaidjust above the five year U.S.
Treasury interest rate, with terms of up to 25 gear are balloon loans with fixed interest ratésclv generally mature in three to five years
with principal amortization for a period of up t0 ears. Our largest commercial loan had a prih@ipkance of $2.4 million at December 31,
2008, and was secured by a mixed use property éseapof retail and office facilities. Our largesultirfamily loan had a principal balance
$4.4 million at December 31, 2008. Both loans wedorming in accordance with their terms on theted
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Loans secured by commercial and multi-family resihte are generally larger and involve a greatgredeof risk than one- to four-family
residential mortgage loans. The borrower's creditwoess and the feasibility and cash flow poteémtfdahe project is of primary concern in
commercial and multi-family real estate lendingahe secured by income properties are generallgdangd involve greater risks than
residential mortgage loans because payments os kmoured by income properties are often depemdetfite successful operation or
management of the properties. As a result, repayofesuch loans may be subject to a greater exttamt residential real estate loans to
adverse conditions in the real estate market oetio@omy. We intend to continue emphasizing thgirmaition of loans secured by commer
real estate and multi-family properties.

One- to Four-Family Lending. Our one- to four-fayniésidential mortgage loans are secured by prppecated in the State of New Jersey.
We generally originate one- to four-family residehimortgage loans in amounts up to 80% of theelegbthe appraised value or selling price
of the mortgaged property without requiring mortgagsurance. We will originate loans with loan &due ratios up to 90% provided the
borrowers obtain private mortgage insurance. Wgirnate both fixed rate and adjustable rate loame-@ four-family loans may have terms
of up to 30 years. The majority of one- to four-fgnfioans we originate for retention in our porttohave terms no greater than 15 years. We
offer adjustable rate loans with fixed rate periotisp to five years, with principal and intereataulated using a maximum 30-year
amortization period. We offer these loans withxadi rate for the first five years with repricindléaving every year after the initial period.
Adjustable rate loans may adjust up to 200 basigtpannually and 600 basis points over the terth@foan. We also broker for a third pe
lender one- to four-family residential loans, whiate primarily fixed rate loans with terms of 3Gy® Our loan brokerage activities permit us
to offer customers longer-term fixed rate loansweeild not otherwise originate while providing a smiof fee income. During 2008, we
brokered $6.6 million in one- to four-family loaasd recognized gains of $137,000 from the saleci $oans.

All of our one- to four-family mortgages includeu& on sale" clauses, which are provisions givinthegight to declare a loan immediately
payable if the borrower sells or otherwise trarster interest in the property to a third party.

Property appraisals on real estate securing ogtesfamily residential loans are made by stateifteitand licensed independent appraisers
approved by our Board of Directors. Appraisalsagormed in accordance with applicable regulatamd policies. At our discretion, we
obtain either title insurance policies or attori@gstificates of title on all first mortgage restate loans originated. We also require fire and
casualty insurance on all properties securing oer o four-family loans. We also require the bamo to obtain flood insurance where
appropriate. In some instances, we charge a fes éma percentage of the loan amount commonlynedeto as points.

Construction Loans. We offer loans to finance thestruction of various types of commercial anddestial property. We originated $15.6
million of such loans during the year ended Decar3tie 2008. Construction loans to builders gengaié offered with terms of up to
eighteen months and interest rates are tied tprihee rate plus a margin. These loans
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generally are offered as adjustable rate loanswWeriginate residential construction loans fadividual borrowers and builders, provided
all necessary plans and permits are in order. @atiin loan funds are disbursed as the projeanesses. At December 31, 2008, our lar
construction loan was $5.0 million, of which $3.0lion was disbursed. This construction loan hasrbmade for the construction of
residential properties. At December 31, 2008, lttas was performing in accordance with its terms.

Construction financing is generally considerednolve a higher degree of risk of loss than lomgatéinancing on improved, occupied real
estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan is ddest largely upon the accuracy of the initialrestie of the property's value at completion of
construction and development and the estimated(cadtiding interest) of construction. During thenstruction phase, a number of factors
could result in delays and cost overruns. If thereste of construction costs proves to be inaceyrae may be required to advance funds
beyond the amount originally committed to permitngbetion of the project. Additionally, if the estite of value proves to be inaccurate, we
may be confronted, at or prior to the maturityted toan, with a project having a value which isiffisient to assure full repayment.

Home Equity Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credie offer home equity loans and lines of credit tiv&t secured by the borrower's
primary residence. Our home equity loans can hetsired as loans that are disbursed in full atietper as lines of credit. Home equity lo¢
and lines of credit are offered with terms up toygars. Virtually all of our home equity loans areyinated with fixed rates of interest and
home equity lines of credit are originated withuadgble interest rates tied to the prime rate. Hequéty loans and lines of credit are
underwritten under the same criteria that we usentterwrite one- to four-family loans. Home equdgns and lines of credit may be
underwritten with a loan-to-value ratio of 80% whmymbined with the principal balance of the exigtmortgage loan. At the time we close a
home equity loan or line of credit, we file a mag to perfect our security interest in the undeglgollateral. At December 31, 2008, the
outstanding balances of home equity loans and bhesedit totaled $38.1 million, or 9.22% of owah portfolio.

Commercial Business Loans. Our commercial busiloess are underwritten on the basis of the borrmadiility to service such debt from
income. Our underwriting standards for commerciadibess loans include a review of the applicaakgéturns, financial statements, credit
history and an assessment of the applicant'syahilimeet existing obligations and payments omptisposed loan based on cash flow
generated by the applicant's business. Commengsahess loans are generally made to small andsim&tt companies located within the S
of New Jersey. In most cases, we require collatdratjuipment, accounts receivable, inventory,tehat other assets before making a
commercial business loan. Our largest commercisiness loan at December 31, 2008 had a principahba of $2.7 million and was secu
by marketable equity securities. We have also vecepersonal guarantees from the borrower, priteigiathe borrower and a director of
BCB Bancorp, Inc. As of December 31, 2008, thisilaas performing according to its terms. The Bamhtinues to monitor the value of the
underlying collateral of this loan on a regularibas

Commercial business loans generally have highes@atd shorter terms than one- to four-family ki@l loans, but they may also involve
higher average balances and a higher



risk of default since their repayment generallyetets on the successful operation of the borrowsesmess.

Consumer Loans. We make various types of secur@diasecured consumer loans and loans that aréesaliaed by new and used
automobiles. Consumer loans generally have territsreé years to ten years.

Consumer loans are advantageous to us becauseirahterest rate sensitivity, but they also inwltwore credit risk than residential mortg
loans because of the higher potential for defaludt,nature of the collateral and the difficultydisposing of the collateral.

The following table shows our loan origination, ghaise, sale and repayment activities for the peiildicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In Thousands)
Beginning of period .............ccccevenne. $ 369,349 $ 322,438 $ 288,145 $ 249,315 $ 191,138
Originations by Type:
Real estate mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .......... 9,683 6,454 9,203 4,299 4,103
Construction .........cccoeeeeeviiieenns 15,591 48,415 34,889 35,765 19,326
Home equity .. . 9,699 14,512 15,821 13,998 14,212
Commercial and multi-family .............. 63,601 55,892 51,542 70,471 64,219
Commercial business .............cccceen. 11,624 16,987 7,946 8,968 8,628
CONSUMET ... 492 215 222 203 284
Total loans originated ................ 110,690 142,475 119,623 133,704 110,772
Purchases:
Real estate mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .......... - - - - --
Construction 113 3,726 4,870 3,645 4,289
Home equity - -- -- - --
Commercial and multi-family .............. - 5,267 1,737 -- 8,450
Commercial business ...........ccccceee - 600 400 1,000 --
CONSUMET ..eiviiiiiiiieieee e - -- -- - --
Total loans purchased ................. 113 9,593 7,007 4,645 12,739

Real estate mortgage:
One- to four-family residential
Construction

............................. 2,523 5,040

2,044 1,273 959
Home equity .......ccooevivvviiiiiinennns - -- -- - --
Commercial and multi-family .............. - 1,275 3,388 -- 788
Commercial business ...........cccvveveee... - -- -- - 1,128
CONSUMET ..ccvviiiiiiiiiiieee e eeeeeeeiiiees - -- -- -- --
Total loans sold ..........c........... 2,523 6,315 5,432 1,273 2,875
Principal repayments ..........ccccceevne 63,651 97,396 86,905 98,246 62,459
Transfer of loans to real estate owned ...... 1,194 1,446 -- -- --
Total reductions ...........c..ee..... 64,845 98,842 92,337 99,519 65,334
Netincrease ..........cccoeevcvnnnne 43,435 46,911 34,293 38,830 58,177
Ending balance .........ccc............ $ 412,784 $ 369,349 $ 322,438 $ 288,145 $ 249,315

Loan Approval Authority and Underwriting. We estiahlvarious lending limits for executive managensemd also maintain a loan
committee. The loan committee is comprised of thainan of the Board, the President, the SeniodlrenOfficer and five non-employee
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members of the Board of Directors. The Presidem®iSenior Lending Officer, together with one otloan officer, have authority to apprc
applications for real estate loans up to $500,0€ter secured loans up to $500,000 and unsecuaed lgp to $25,000. The loan committee
considers all applications in excess of the abewdihg limits and the entire board of directoriest all such loans.

Upon receipt of a completed loan application fropr@spective borrower, a credit report is orderedome and certain other information is
verified. If necessary, additional financial infaation may be requested. An appraisal is requirethiunderwriting of all one- to fodamily
loans. We may rely on an estimate of value of estdte performed by our Senior Lending Officertfome equity loans or lines of credit of
up to $250,000. Appraisals are processed by statified independent appraisers approved by thedobDirectors.

An attorney's certificate of title is required dhreewly originated real estate mortgage loansdnnection with refinancing and home equity
loans or lines of credit in amounts up to $250,008 will obtain a record owner's search in liewnfattorney's certificate of title. Borrowers
also must obtain fire and casualty insurance. Flosdrance is also required on loans secured hyeptythat is located in a flood zone.

Loan Commitments. Written commitments are giveprtuspective borrowers on all approved real estated. Generally, we honor
commitments for up to 60 days from the date ofasse. At December 31, 2008, our outstanding lo@ination commitments totaled $5.7
million, outstanding construction loans in progrestaled $25.7 million and undisbursed lines ofidreotaled $14.8 million.

Loan Delinquencies. We send a notice of nonpaynteborrowers when their loan becomes 15 days pastlfisuch payment is not received
by month end, an additional notice of nonpaymeseist to the borrower. After 60 days, if paymersti delinquent, a notice of right to cure
default is sent to the borrower giving 30 additicshays to bring the loan current before foreclossreommenced. If the loan continues in a
delinquent status for 90 days past due and no megatyplan is in effect, foreclosure proceedings mélinitiated. In an effort to more closely
monitor the performance of our loan portfolio asdet quality, the Bank has created various coraémtrof credit reports, specifically as it
relates to our construction and commercial re@tegiortfolios. These reports stress test declimatiges in the aforementioned portfolios up
to and including a 25% value deprecation to thgioal appraised value to ascertain our potentipbsure.

Loans are reviewed and are placed on aammual status and the accrual of interest is distoed when the loan becomes more than 90
delinquent or when, in our opinion, the collectmfradditional interest is doubtful. Subsequentriedé payments, if any, are either applied to
the outstanding principal balance or recorded tsest income, depending on the assessment oftilmaie collectability of the loan. At
December 31, 2008, we had $3.7 million in non-aiogyloans. Our largest exposure of non-performoank at that date consisted of three
loans, with one specific borrower with a total gipal balance of $2.0 million, collateralized byegal parcels of real estate whose total
appraised value was approximately $3.2 million fahat date. Another loan relationship consistifithoee loans with one specific borrower
and a total balance of $1.1 million is also in ramtrual status. This borrower is in

10



foreclosure and there is the prospect, upon comesyand disposition of the properties, that thekBaay incur a loss as the value of the
properties secured as collateral for these loams Hapreciated in value.

A loan is considered impaired when it is probahke horrower will not repay the loan according te dhiginal contractual terms of the loan
agreement. We have determined that first mortgeges! on one- to four-family properties and all eoner loans represent large groups of
smaller-balance homogeneous loans that are cokdgievaluated for impairment. Additionally, we leagletermined that an insignificant
delay (less than 90 days) will not cause a lodpetalassified as impaired and a loan is not impladering a period of delay in payment, if we
expect to collect all amounts due including inteeexrued at the contractual interest rate fopméod of delay. We independently evaluate
all loans identified as impaired. We estimate drkxdises on impaired loans based on the presam: whlexpected cash flows or the fair value
of the underlying collateral if the loan repaymentlerived from the sale or operation of such t¢etk. Impaired loans, or portions of such
loans, are charged off when we determine thatl&zegbloss has occurred. Until such time, an alloegafor loan losses is maintained for
estimated losses. Cash receipts on impaired la@nspgplied first to accrued interest receivableesslotherwise required by the loan terms,
except when an impaired loan is also a nonaccoaal, lin which case the portion of the receiptsteeldo interest is recognized as income. At
December 31, 2008, we had nine loans totaling 88libn which are classified as impaired and on ebhioan loss allowances totaling
$881,000 have been established. During 2008, sttareome of $138,000 was recognized on impairaddo

The following table sets forth delinquencies in man portfolio as of the dates indicated:

At December 31, 2008 At December 31, 2007
60 -89 Days 90 Days or More 60-89 Day s 90 Days or More
Number Principal Principal Number Prin cipal Number Principal
of Balance Number Balance of Bal ance of Balance
Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans Loans of Loans Loans of Loans

One- to four-

family residential .................... 3 $ 1,507 4 $ 1,213 - $ - 1 $ 319

Construction .... . 1 360 - - - - 1 1,247

Home equity ......ccccoevvvrveninnns - -- - -- - - 1 149

Commercial and multi-family .... 2 265 5 2,515 2 1,770 5 2,558

Total .o 6 2,132 9 3,728 2 1,770 8 4,273
Commercial business ...................... - - - - - - - -
Consumer . - -- - - - - - -

Total delinquent loans 6 $ 2,132 9 $ 3,728 23 1,770 8 $ 4,273

Delinquent loans to total loans .......... 0.51% 0.90% 0.48% 1.16%
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One- to four-

family residential .................
Construction
Home equity
Commercial and multi-family ...........

Commercial business ..
Consumer

Total delinquent loans

Delinquent loans to total loans ..........

One- to four-

family residential .................
Construction
Home equity
Commercial and multi-family ...........

Commercial business ..........cccceeeee..
CONSUMET ...covviiiiiiiiiiiiii e

At December 31, 2006 At December 31, 2005
60-89 Days 90 Days or More 60-89 D ays 90 Days or More
r Principal Principal Number Pr incipal Number Principal

Balance Number Balance of B alance of Balance
s ofLoans of Loans oflLoans Loans o fLoans Loans of Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

-- - - % - - $ - 1% 79
1 1,356 - - - - - -
- -- 1 307 - - 4 803
1 1,356 1 307 - - 5 882
- -- - -- - - 1 150
1 2 1 16 - - - -
2 $ 1,358 2 $ 323 - $ - 6 $ 1,032

0.42% 0.10% --% 0.36%
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At December 31, 2004

0-89 Days 90 Days or More
Principal Principal
r Balance Number Balance

ns of Loans of Loans of Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

- % - 1% 173

1 29 - -

- - 1 313

1 29 2 486

1 123 3 515

- - 1 3

2 $ 152 6 $ 1,004
0.06% 0.40%



The table below sets forth the amounts and categofinon-performing assets in the Bank's loarf@art Loans are placed on non-accrual
status when the collection of principal and/or iegt become doubtful. For all years presented, BGBimunity Bank has had no troubled
debt restructurings (which involve forgiving a port of interest or principal on any loans or makiogns at a rate materially less than that of
market rates). Foreclosed assets include assaigeatin settlement of loans.

At December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-accruing loans:

One- to four-family residential ............... $1213 $ 319 $ - $ - $ 173
Construction .........ccceeeveeiiiniiinenns -~ 1,247 - - -

Home equity .......ccceeeviiiiieieniiieeeee - 149 - - -
Commercial and multi-family .................. 2,515 2,039 307 637 313
Commercial business ............cccccvvveeeens -- -- -- 150 67
CONSUMET vviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiiee e -- -- 16 -- --

Total oo 3,728 3,754 323 787 553

Accruing loans delinquent more than 90 days:

One- to four-family residential ............... -- - - - -
CoNStruction .........ceeeveeeeeeeeeeiiiinnnn, -- - - - -

Home equity .......coeeeviiiiiiieniiieeeee - - - - -

Commercial and multi-family .................. -- 519 -- 166 --

Commercial business ...........cccecvveeene -- - -- - 448

CONSUMET ...ttt -- - -- 79 3

Total oo - 519 - 245 451

Total non-performing loans ..............cc....... 3,728 4,273 323 1,032 1,004
Foreclosed assets ..........ccocceeeeiiieeeenns 1,435 287 - - 6
Total non-performing assets ............c......... $5,163 $4,560 $ 323 $1,032 $1,010

Total non-performing assets as a percentage
of total assets .......ccccccveveiviiienennne 0.89% 0.81% 0.06% 0.22% 0.27%

Total non-performing loans as a percentage
of total loans ............cccoeeeiiiinnnns 0.90% 1.16% 0.10% 0.36% 0.40%

For the year ended December 31, 2008, gross ihiesne which would have been recorded had ourawmnuing loans been current in
accordance with their original terms amounted t83$200. We received and recorded $138,000 in isténeome for such loans for the year
ended December 31, 2008.

Classified Assets. Our policies provide for a dfestion system for problem assets. Under thisgifécation system, problem assets are
classified as "substandard," "doubtful,” "loss™gpecial mention." An asset is considered substariflé is inadequately protected by its
current net worth and paying capacity of the boeouwr of the collateral pledged, if any. Substaddessets include those characterized by the
"distinct possibility” that "some loss" will be gamed if the deficiencies are not corrected. Asstssified as doubtful have all the
weaknesses inherent in those classified substanddrdhe added characteristic that the weaknessegmt makes "collection or liquidation in
full" on the basis of currently existing facts, ditions, and values, "highly questionable and inbatade." Assets classified as loss are those
considered "uncollectible” and of such little vathat their continuance as assets without the ksitafent of a specific loss reserve is not
warranted, and the loan is chargefti-Assets may be designated special mention tsecalipotential weaknesses that do not currentlyamé
classification in one of the aforementioned catigor

13



When we classify problem assets, we may estabéslerl allowances for loan losses in an amount ddgirudent by management. General
allowances represent loss allowances which have éstablished to recognize the inherent risk aatetiwith lending activities, but which,
unlike specific allowances, have not been allocédguhrticular problem assets. A portion of gentrss allowances established to cover
possible losses related to assets classified ataswdard or doubtful may be included in determirdngregulatory capital. Specific valuation
allowances for loan losses generally do not qualifyegulatory capital. At December 31, 2008, wa $iE2,000 in assets classified as
doubtful, $3.4 million in assets classified as sabdard, all of which were also classified as imghand $3.0 million in assets classified as
special mention, of which $341,000 was classifieéhgpaired. The loans classified as substandarésept primarily commercial loans
secured either by residential real estate, comm@aal estate or heavy equipment.

Allowances for Loan Losses. A provision for loasdes is charged to operations based on managemitistion of the losses that may be
incurred in our loan portfolio. The evaluation, luing a review of all loans on which full collebikity of interest and principal may not be
reasonably assured, considers: (1) the risk chenaiits of the loan portfolio; (2) current econermbnditions; (3) actual losses previously
experienced; (4) the level of loan growth; andtf) existing level of reserves for loan losses #natpossible and estimable.

We monitor our allowance for loan losses and malditimns to the allowance as economic conditiosatie. Although we maintain our
allowance for loan losses at a level that we carsadiequate for the inherent risk of loss in oanlportfolio, future losses could exceed
estimated amounts and additional provisions fon loases could be required. In addition, our deiteation of the amount of the allowance
for loan losses is subject to review by the NevedgiDepartment of Banking and Insurance and th€€FBd part of their examination
process. After a review of the information avaighur regulators might require the establishméanadditional allowance. Any increase in
the loan loss allowance required by regulators didalve a negative impact on our earnings.
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The following table sets forth an analysis of trenBs allowance for loan losses.

Balance at beginning of period................. $

Charge-offs:
One- to four-family residential.............
Construction...........cceceeeeennne
Home equity........ccceeernnee.
Commercial and multi-family.................
Commercial business..........c.cccccevenn.
CONSUMET ...t

Total charge-offs.......cccccevveeeieiinnnnns

RecoVveries........cccouveieiiiiiiee e,
Net charge-offs (recoveries)........
Provisions charged to operations

Ending balance............ccccooeiiinnnne. $

Ratio of non-performing assets to total assets
at the end of period...........coccueen.

Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total
loans outstanding..........ccccccceevveenn.

Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries) during
the period to average loans outstanding
during the period..........ccccceevinneen.

Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries) during
the period to non-performing loans..........

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
4,065 $ 3,733 $ 3,090 $ 2,506 $ 2,113
90 270 - - -
3 - 66 522 332
8 15 1 24 -
101 285 67 546 332
40 17 85 12 35
61 268 (18) 534 297
1,300 600 625 1,118 690
5304 $ 4,065 $ 3,733 $ 3,090 $ 2,506
0.89% 0.81% 0.06% 0.22% 0.27%
1.28% 1.10% 1.16% 1.07% 1.01%
0.02% 0.09% (0.01)% 0.19% 0.13%
1.64% 6.27% (5.57)%  51.74% 29.58%
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Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses. Thédwing table illustrates the allocation of thecallance for loan losses for each categor
loan. The allocation of the allowance to each aatggs not necessarily indicative of future lossiy particular category and does not restrict
our use of the allowance to absorb losses in dtiaer categories.

Percent of
Loans in
each
Category in
Amount Total Loans Amo

Type of loan:
One- to four-family.... $ 688 17.94% $
Construction........... 941 15.14
Home equity............ 167 9.22
Commercial and multi-
family............... 3,175 54.07 2,
Commercial business.... 216  3.42
Consumer............... 117  0.21
Total....cceeenn $5,304 100.00% $4

At December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Percent of Percent of Perc
Loans in Loans in Loa
each each ea
Category in Category in Cate

unt Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Tota

221

172

476

(Dollars in Thousands)

1496% $ 69 1364% $ 76 1
13.53 1,068 12.06 329
9.58 126  10.02 91

56.35 2,285 59.60 2,180 6
5.38 168  4.56 401
0.20 17 0.12 13

16

2004
ent of Percent of
nsin Loans in
ch each
gory in Category in

| Loans Amount Total Loans

211% $ 78 13.98%
9.98 217 7.70
8.43 82 827

426 1,669 63.68
5.06 444  6.07
0.16 16  0.30

0.00% $2,506 100.00%



Investment Activities

Investment Securities. We are required under fédegalations to maintain a minimum amount of ldjaissets that may be invested in
specified short-term securities and certain otheestments. The level of liquid assets varies deipgnupon several factors, including: (i) the
yields on investment alternatives, (ii) our judgmas to the attractiveness of the yields then alsldlin relation to other opportunities, (
expectation of future yield levels, and (iv) ouojections as to the short-term demand for fundsetased in loan origination and other
activities. Investment securities, including moggéacked securities, are classified at the timmuothase, based upon management's
intentions and abilities, as securities held-tourigt or securities available for sale. Debt setesiacquired with the intent and ability to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity amd stated at cost and adjusted for amortizatigorerhium and accretion of discount, which
are computed using the level yield method and neizeg as adjustments of interest income. All ottebit and equity securities are classified
as available for sale to serve principally as as®@of liquidity. During 2008, the Bank recordedather than temporary impairment (OTTI)
charge of $2.9 million on a $3.0 million investm@&mfederal National Mortgage Association (FNMAgfarred stock. This OTTI charge
resulted from a significant decline in the markaiue of these securities following the announcerbgrthe Federal Housing Finance Agency
(FHFA) that FNMA would be placed in conservatorstigditionally, the FHFA eliminated the paymentdifidends on common and
preferred stock and assumed the powers of the Boatananagement of FNMA. Based on these factoesCtmpany evaluated the
impairment as other than temporary.

Current regulatory and accounting guidelines reiggrthvestment securities require us to categ@eurities as held-to-maturity, available
for sale or trading. As of December 31, 2008, we $841.3 million of securities classified as hedertaturity, $888,000 in securities
classified as available for sale, and no securtitigssified as trading. Securities classified a&lalle for sale are reported for financial
reporting purposes at the fair value with net cleang the fair value from period to period includeda separate component of stockholders'
equity, net of income taxes. At December 31, 2008,securities classified as held-to-maturity hddiavalue of $141.1 million. Changes in
the fair value of securities classified as heldvtaturity do not affect our income. Management hasiitent and we have the ability to hold
securities classified as held-to-maturity. Durihg year ended December 31, 2008, we had no seswsiles.

At December 31, 2008, our investment policy allowaastments in instruments such as: (i) U.S. Tusasbligations; (ii) U.S. federal
agency or federally sponsored agency obligatidgismortgage-backed securities; and

(iv) certificates of deposit. The Board of Direcanay authorize additional investments. At Decen®ieR008, our U.S. Government agency
securities totaled $98.6 million, all of which wenassified as held-to-maturity and which primadbnsisted of callable securities issued by
government sponsored enterprises.

As a source of liquidity and to supplement our lagdactivities, we have invested in residential tpage-backed securities. Mortgage-backed
securities generally yield less than the loansuihaerlie such securities because of the costywhpat guarantees or credit enhancements tha
reduce credit risk. Mortgage-backed securitiessgaxe as collateral for borrowings and, througtayepents, as a source of liquidity.
Mortgage-backed securities

17



represent a participation interest in a pool oflgrfamily or other type of mortgages. Principatlanterest payments are passed from the
mortgage originators, through intermediaries (gaihegovernment-sponsored enterprises) that polrapackage the participation interests
in the form of securities, to investors, like uselgovernment-sponsored enterprises guaranteayneent of principal and interest to
investors and include Freddie Mac, Ginnie Mae, Badnie Mae.

Mortgage-backed securities typically are issuedh witited principal amounts. The securities aredzhbly pools of mortgage loans that have
interest rates that are within a set range and hamgng maturities. The underlying pool of mortgagan be composed of either fixed rate or
adjustable rate mortgage loans. Mortgage-backadtities are generally referred to as mortgage gpgtion certificates or pass-through
certificates. The interest rate risk charactesstitthe underlying pool of mortgages (i.e., fixate or adjustable rate) and the prepayment
are passed on to the certificate holder. The fif@ mortgage-backed pass-through security is eéquak life of the underlying mortgages.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual tugties due to scheduled repayments and becausaw®rys may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without prepayment péaal

Securities Portfolio. The following table sets fothe carrying value of our securities portfolialdfederal funds at the dates indicated.

At December 31,

20 08 2007 2006

(In Thousands)
Securities available for sale:

Equity Securities..........c..ccveun... $ 888 $ 2,056 $
Securities held to maturity:

U.S. Government and Agency securities.... 98 ,607 130,156 122,594

Mortgage-backed securities............... 42 673 34,861 26,078

Total securities held to maturity...... 141 ,280 165,017 148,672

Money market funds...........cccceeeinnes - 3,500 17,500
FHLB StocK........ccovvvienieiieienne. 5 ,736 5,560 3,724

Total investment securities.............. $ 147 ,904 $176,133 $ 169,896
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The following table shows our securities held-totumidy purchase, sale and repayment activitiegHerperiods indicated.

Y ears Ended December 31,

200 8 2007 2006

(In Thousands)

Purchases:
Fixed-rate.......c.cccceoevvvveeeennns $ 60 ,606 $ 37,338 $ 37,500

Total purchases

Sales:
Fixed-rate.........c..ccovevvveevrennenn $ - 3% -3 -
Total sales........c.ccoceeeeveenns $ - % - % -

Principal Repayments:

Repayment of principal.................. $ 84 ,400 $ 21,010 $ 28,845
Increase in other items, net............ (58) 17 15
Net increases.........ccccocueeennen. $ (23 ,850) $ 16,345 $ 8,670
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Maturities of Securities Portfolio. The followinglile sets forth information regarding the schedubeturities, carrying values, estimated
market values, and weighted average yields foBtnek's debt securities at December 31, 2008 byactuial maturity. The following table
does not take into consideration the effects oédaled repayments or the effects of possible prapays.

As of December 31, 2008

M orethan  More than five to Total debt investment
Within one year One t ofive years tenyears More than ten year s securities
Carrying Average Carry ing Average Carrying Average Carrying Averag e Fair Carrying Average
Value Yield Val ue Yield Value Yield Value Yield Value Value Yield

(Dollars in Thousands)
U.S. government agency

securities............ $ - -% $ 6 315 4.68% $ 6,000 5.31% $86,292 6.01% $99,187 $98,607 5.89%
Mortgage-backed
securities............ - - 88 6.00 2,336 5.25 40,249 5.26 41,393 42,673 5.26

Total debt investment
securities.......... $ - % $ 6 403 4.70% $ 8,336 5.29% $126,541 5.77% $140,580 $141,280 5.70%
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Sources of Funds

Our major external source of funds for lending attter investment purposes are deposits. Funddsarelarived from the receipt of payme
on loans, prepayment of loans, maturities of inwesit securities and mortgage-backed securitiebamdwings. Scheduled loan principal
repayments are a relatively stable source of fumtie deposit inflows and outflows and loan prepayts are significantly influenced by
general interest rates and market conditions.

Deposits. Consumer and commercial deposits arctdtt principally from within our primary markeearthrough the offering of a selection
of deposit instruments including demand, NOW, sgsiand club accounts, money market accounts, amdcertificate accounts. Deposit
account terms vary according to the minimum balarqgeired, the time period the funds must remaid@posit, and the interest rate.

The interest rates paid by us on deposits aret $sle¢ @irection of our senior management. Interat&ts are determined based on our liquidity
requirements, interest rates paid by our compstitmuir growth goals, and applicable regulatoryriegins and requirements. At December
31, 2008, we had no brokered deposits.

Deposit Accounts. The following table sets forth tollar amount of deposits in the various typedegfosit programs we offered as of the
dates indicated.

December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Rate(1) Amou nt Rate(l) Amount Rate(l) Amount
(Dollars in Thousands)
Demand .........cccocuveeenne -% $ 30, 561 -% $ 35,897 -% $ 35,275
NOW ...ooviiiieiiiiiiieees 125 25, 843 1.40 20,260 1.41 21,007
Money market .................. 279 19, 539 4.14 27,697 3.70 8,022
Savings and club accounts ..... 1.36 99, 586 1.71 100,441 191 117,617
Certificates of deposit ....... 4,13 234, 974 482 214,524 4.28 200,826
Total ..coovvieeieie, 2.84% $ 410, 503 3.30% $ 398,819 2.99% $ 382,747

(1) Represents the average rate paid during the yea
The following table sets forth our deposit flowsidg the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

20 08 2007 2006

(Dollars in Thousands)

Beginning of period .............cc........ $ 398 ,819 $382,747 $ 362,851

Net deposits ......coeeevevvviiicininnnns 107 3,135 9,241

Interest credited on deposit accounts ..... 11 577 12,937 10,655
Total increase in deposit accounts ..... 11 ,684 16,072 19,896

Ending balance ,503 $398,819 $ 382,747

Percent increase 2.93% 4.20% 5.48%
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Jumbo Certificates of Deposit. As of December 308 the aggregate amount of outstanding certéfcaft deposit in amounts greater tha
equal to $100,000 was approximately $118.4 millibme following table indicates the amount of outtifieates of deposit of $100,000 or
more by time remaining until maturity.

At December 31, 2008
Maturity Period (In Thous ands)
Within three months ................ $ 40, 931
Three through twelve months ........ 50, 533
Over twelve months ................. 26, 903
Total ..o $ 118, 367

The following table presents, by rate category,aaitificate of deposit accounts as of the datdeated.

At December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Amount Pe rcent  Amount Percent  Amount Perc ent
(Dollars in Thousands)
Certificate of deposit rates:

1.00% - 1.99% 0.10% $ 929 0.43% $ 1,539 0.76%
2.00% - 2.99% 18.23 698 0.33 1,511 0.75
3.00% - 3.99% 45.54 41,048 19.14 27,595 1 3.74
4.00% - 4.99% 31.53 64,688 30.15 89,740 4 4.69
5.00% - 5.99% 460 107,161 49.95 80,441 4 0.06

Total.....ccvveeeireen 00.00% $ 214,524 100.00% $ 200,826 10 0.00%

The following table presents, by rate category, rémaining period to maturity of certificate of asjt accounts outstanding as of December
31, 2008.

Maturity Date

1 Year Overl Over 2 Over
or Less to2 Years to3Years 3Years Tot al
(In Thousands)
Interest rate:

1.00% - 1.99%.... $ 245 % - $ - $ - 3 245
2.00% - 2.99%.... 4 2,555 242 -- 50 42 ,847
3.00% - 3.99%.... 9 3,747 1,766 3,387 8,117 107 ,017
4.00%-4.99%...... 4 2,650 27,394 3,922 118 74 ,084
5.00%-5.99%........ccoevviiiiiniiiiiiinns 8,915 1,779 87 - 10 ,781

8,112 $ 31,181 $ 7,396 $ 8,285 $234

Borrowings. Our advances from the FHLB of New Yark secured by a pledge of our stock in the FHLB@&# York and investment
securities. Each FHLB credit program has its ovtarist rate, which may be fixed or adjustable, ramge of maturities. If the need arises,
may also access the Federal Reserve Bank discantidw to supplement our supply of funds that we lcam and to meet deposit withdra
requirements. During the year ended December 318 2@ utilized short term borrowings in the formaaof overnight line of credit with the
FHLB of New York and during the year ended Decen8ier2007, we had no short-term borrowings. Ourimam short-term borrowings
outstanding during 2008 was $24.0 million. At Debem31, 2008, we had the ability to borrow appraagely $113.1 million under our cre:
facilities with the FHLB of New York.
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The following table sets forth information concemibalances and interest rates on our short-ternowings at the dates and for the periods
indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(D ollars in Thousands)
Balance at end of period............. $ 2,00 0 $-- $ -
Average balance during period........ $ 4,79 6 $-- $ 705
Maximum outstanding at any
month end ........ccoeevevennnns $ 20,50 0 $ - $ 1,000
Weighted average interest rate at
end of period ..........c..c... 0.4 4% --
Average interest rate during
period ......cooeeiiiiiiiiiins 1.2 3% -- 4.93%

Employees

At December 31, 2008, we had 66 full-time and 2-pae employees. None of our employees is repiteskby a collective bargaining
group. We believe that our relationship with oumpéoyees is good.

Subsidiaries

We have one non-bank subsidiary. BCB Holding Comppgamestment Corp. was established in 2004 forpiimpose of holding and investing
in securities. Only securities authorized to bechased by BCB Community Bank are held by BCB H@ddompany Investment Corp. At
December 31, 2008, this company held $130.3 milliosecurities.

Supervision and Regulation

Bank holding companies and banks are extensivglylated under both federal and state law. Thess & regulations are intended to
protect depositors, not shareholders. To the extattthe following information describes statutand regulatory provisions, it is qualified in
its entirety by reference to the particular statytand regulatory provisions. Any change in theli@pple law or regulation may have a
material effect on the business and prospectseo€ttmpany and the Bank.

Bank Holding Company Regulation. As a bank holdingipany registered under the Bank Holding Compartyof 1956, as amended, the
Company is subject to the regulation and supemviafaplicable to bank holding companies by the Badit@overnors of the Federal Reserve
System. The Company is required to file with theddfal Reserve annual reports and other informaigarding its business operations and
those of its subsidiaries.

The Bank Holding Company Act requires, among othirgs, the prior approval of the Federal Resenvany case where a bank holding
company proposes to (i) acquire all or substamtalllof the assets of any other bank, (ii) acqdirect or indirect ownership or control of
more than 5% of the outstanding voting stock of bagk (unless it owns a majority of such compawgtgng shares) or (iii) merge or
consolidate with any other bank holding companye Fhderal Reserve will not approve any acquisitioerger, or consolidation that would
have a substantially anti-competitive effect, usléee anti-competitive impact of the proposed tatien is clearly outweighed by a greater
public interest in meeting the convenience and sieédhe community to be served. The Federal Res&so considers

23



capital adequacy and other financial and managersalurces and future prospects of the compantetharbanks concerned, together with
the convenience and needs of the community to lvedewhen reviewing acquisitions or mergers.

The Bank Holding Company Act generally prohibitseank holding company, with certain limited excep$ipfrom (i) acquiring or retaining
direct or indirect ownership or control of moreritg2o of the outstanding voting stock of any compathjch is not a bank or bank holding
company, or (ii) engaging directly or indirectlyawtivities other than those of banking, managingomtrolling banks, or performing services
for its subsidiaries, unless such non-banking lassins determined by the Federal Reserve to bisely related to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be properly incident theret

The Bank Holding Company Act has been amendedrimipbank holding companies and banks, which medam capital, management &
Community Reinvestment Act standards, to engagebroader range of non-banking activities. In addijtbank holding companies which
elect to become financial holding companies mayagagn certain banking and nbanking activities without prior Federal Reserverapal.
At this time, the Company has elected not to becarfieancial holding company, as it does not enga@ay activities not permissible for

banks.

There are a number of obligations and restrictionEosed on bank holding companies and their deprysiistitution subsidiaries by law and
regulatory policy that are designed to minimizegptial loss to the depositors of such depositosyititions and the FDIC insurance funds in
the event the depository institution is in dandedefault. Under a policy of the Federal Reservihwéspect to bank holding company
operations, a bank holding company is requiredtuesas a source of financial strength to its slitagi depository institutions and to commit
resources to support such institutions in circurmgta where it might not do so absent such polibg. Federal Reserve also has the authority
under the Bank Holding Company Act to require akdlamlding company to terminate any activity or édimrquish control of a non-bank
subsidiary upon the Federal Reserve's determin#igtrsuch activity or control constitutes a sesidak to the financial soundness and
stability of any bank subsidiary of the bank hofgzompany.

Capital Adequacy Guidelines for Bank Holding ConmipanThe Federal Reserve has adopted risk-basé@dlaqgdelines for bank holding
companies. The risk-based capital guidelines asgyded to make regulatory capital requirements rserssitive to differences in risk profile
among banks and bank holding companies, to acéounff-balance sheet exposure, and to minimizendentives for holding liquid assets.
Under these guidelines, assets and off-balance gbees are assigned to broad risk categories wé@bhappropriate weights. The resulting
capital ratios represent capital as a percentag@talfrisk-weighted assets and off-balance shemsts.

The Company is subject to regulatory capital rezqunts and guidelines imposed by the Federal Reesshich are substantially similar to
those imposed by the FDIC on depository institugiathin their jurisdictions. At December 31, 20@&B Bancorp, Inc., was considered to
be a well capitalized Bank Holding Company.
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The Federal Reserve may set higher capital regeinésrfor holding companies whose circumstancesawait. For example, holding
companies experiencing internal growth or makinguisitions are expected to maintain strong capibaitions substantially above the
minimum supervisory levels, without significantiaglce on intangible assets.

From time to time, the Federal Reserve Board aadther federal bank regulatory agencies propoaag#s to, and issue interpretations of,
risk-based capital guidelines and related repoitistyuctions. Such changes or interpretationsd;afiimplemented in the future, affect the
Company's capital ratios and risk-adjusted assets.

Bank Regulation. As a New Jersey-chartered comiadraink, the Bank is subject to the regulationgesugion, and examination of the New
Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. Astd@fnsured institution, we are subject to the dagian, supervision and examination of
the FDIC, an agency of the federal government.r€gelations of the FDIC and the New Jersey DepartmEBanking and Insurance impact
virtually all of our activities, including the mimium level of capital we must maintain, our abitilypay dividends, our ability to expand
through new branches or acquisitions and variohsranatters.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Our deposit accoargsnsured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Catipa, generally up to a maximum of
$250,000 per separately insured depositor, pursoght Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation'smméy announced increase in deposit
insurance available which will remain effective ilBtecember 31, 2009. Congress has recently praplesgslation to make this increased
deposit insurance limit permanent. Our depositsabgect to Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatapodit insurance assessments. The
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has adoptestk-dbased system for determining deposit insugassessments.

On December 22, 2008, the FDIC published a finig tlat raises the current deposit insurance asseggates uniformly for all institutions
by 7 basis points (to a range from 12 to 50 bagistp) effective for the first quarter of 2009. Gabruary 27, 2009, the FDIC also issued a
final rule that revises the way the FDIC calculdtzteral deposit insurance assessment rates begirmthe second quarter of 2009. Under
the new rule, the FDIC will first establish an ihgion's initial base assessment rate. This inittese assessment rate will range, depending or
the risk category of the institution, from 12 told&sis points. The FDIC will then adjust the idibase assessment (higher or lower) to obtain
the total base assessment rate. The adjustmethis itoitial base assessment rate will be based apanstitution's levels of unsecured debt,
secured liabilities, and brokered deposits. Thal todse assessment rate will range from 7 to 7&sEsIpoints of the institution's deposits.
Additionally, the FDIC issued an interim rule theduld impose a special 20 basis points assessmehire 30, 2009, which would be
collected on September 30, 2009. However, the AR2i€indicated a willingness to decrease the spasggdssment under certain
circumstances concerning the overall financial thead the insurance fund. Special assessments ah@d®0 basis points would result in
additional expense of approximately $450,000 ta0$300, respectively. The interim rule also allowsddditional special assessments.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Ripi@h finding that an institution has engaged igafi@ or unsound practices, is in an
unsafe condition to continue operations or has
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violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, ardecondition imposed by the FDIC. We do not knaiwany practice, condition or violation
that might lead to termination of deposit insurance

In addition to the Federal Deposit Insurance Cafion assessments, the Financing Corporation ("Fi@uthorized to impose and collect,
with the approval of the Federal Deposit Insura@ogporation, assessments for anticipated paymisstgnce costs and custodial fees on
bonds issued by the FICO in the 1980s to recaptalie former Federal Savings and Loan InsurancpdZation. The bonds issued by the
FICO are due to mature in 2017 through 2019. Fetmarter ended September 30, 2008, the annudiZ#d assessment was equal to 1.12
basis points for each $100 in domestic depositaitaiaied at an institution.

On October 14, 2008, the FDIC announced a new pmgrthe Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program GR"). This program has two
components. One guarantees newly issued seniocuneskedebt of the participating organizations, apdrtain limits established for each
institution, issued between October 14, 2008 ame B0, 2009. The FDIC will pay the unpaid principatl interest on an FDIC-guaranteed
debt instrument upon the uncured failure of theigipating entity to make a timely payment of pijya or interest in accordance with the
terms of the instrument. The guarantee will reniaieffect until June 30, 2012. On February 27, 20068 FDIC issued an interim rule
allowing participants to apply to have the FDIC gudee newly issued senior unsecured debt that aawilgl converts into common shares
on a specified date that is on or before June @022In return for the FDIC's guarantee, partigigatnstitutions will pay the FDIC a fee
based on the amount and maturity of the debt. Tdragainy has opted not to participate in this compbo&the TLGP. The other component
of the program provides full FDIC insurance coveré&y non-interest bearing transaction deposit aetsy regardless of dollar amount, until
December 31, 2009. An annualized 10 basis poimisassent on balances in noninterest-bearing traosamtcounts that exceed the existing
deposit insurance limit of $250,000 will be assdss® a quarterly basis to insured depository tihs participating in this component of
TLGP. The Company has chosen to participate indtisponent of the TLGP. The additional expenseeadlto this coverage is not expected
to be significant for the Bank.

Capital Adequacy Guidelines. The FDIC has promeldaisk-based capital rules, which are designedake regulatory capital requirements
more sensitive to differences in risk profile amdmagks, to account for off-balance sheet exposun@to minimize disincentives for holding
liquid assets. Under these rules, assets and EHfiba sheet items are assigned to broad risk aasgeach with appropriate weights. The
resulting capital ratios represent capital as aqreage of total risk-weighted assets and off-laheet items. These rules are substantially
similar to the Federal Reserve rules discussedabov

In addition to the risk-based capital rules, thd®&bas adopted a minimum Tier 1 capital (leveragéd. This measurement is substantially
similar to the Federal Reserve leverage capitakoreanent discussed above. At December 31, 2008ahk's ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets was 14.63%. Our Tier 1 capitatioweighted assets was 13.38%, and our Tier taldpiaverage assets was 9.22%.

Dividends. The Bank may pay dividends as declaraah time to time by the Board of Directors out ofifls legally available, subject to
certain restrictions. Under the New Jersey

26



Banking Act of 1948, as amended, the Bank may agtgpcash dividend unless, following the paymérd,Bank’s capital stock will be
unimpaired and the Bank will have a surplus ofesslthan 50% of the Bank capital stock or, if tiat,payment of the dividend will not
reduce the surplus. In addition, the Bank canngtdiédends in amounts that would reduce the Baod(stal below regulatory imposed
minimums.

The USA PATRIOT Act

In response to the terrorist events of Septembg2dd1, the Uniting and Strengthening America byvitting Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, ar WSA PATRIOT Act, was signed into law on Octob8r 2001. The USA PATRIOT Act
gave the federal government new powers to addeeswist threats through enhanced domestic secmeétgsures, expanded surveillance
powers, increased information sharing and broadan&emoney laundering requirements. For yeargaial institutions such as the Bank
have been subject to federal anti-money launderbligations. As such, the Bank does not believdi8& PATRIOT Act will have a
material impact on its operations.

SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes-Oxledhtains a broad range of legislative reforms idéghto address corporate and
accounting fraud. In addition to the establishnmadra new accounting oversight board that will enéoauditing, quality control and
independence standards and will be funded by fees &ll publicly traded companies, Sarbanes-Oxlaggs certain restrictions on the scope
of services that may be provided by accountingditmtheir public company audit clients. Any nordidgervices being provided to a public
company audit client will require preapproval bg tompany's audit committee. In addition, Sarb&@dsy makes certain changes to the
requirements for audit partner rotation after daqueof time. Sarbanes-Oxley requires chief exeeutifficers and chief financial officers, or
their equivalent, to certify to the accuracy ofipdic reports filed with the Securities and Exchau@pmmission, subject to civil and criminal
penalties if they knowingly or willingly violate it certification requirement. The Company's Chieé&utive Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer have signed certifications testRorm 10-K as required by Sarbanes-Oxley. Intaatdiunder Sarbanes-Oxley, counsel
will be required to report evidence of a materialation of the securities laws or a breach of iduy duty by a company to its chief
executive officer or its chief legal officer, anfisuch officer does not appropriately respondgqoort such evidence to the audit committee or
other similar committee of the board of directorshe board itself.

Under Sarbanes-Oxley, longer prison terms will gpplcorporate executives who violate federal séesrlaws; the period during which
certain types of suits can be brought against gpammy or its officers is extended; and bonuses tsuéop executives prior to restatement
company's financial statements are now subjecisgodgement if such restatement was due to compan&conduct. Executives are also
prohibited from trading the company's securitiesrduretirement plan "blackout” periods, and losmsompany executives (other than loans
by financial institutions permitted by federal rsil@nd regulations) are restricted. In addition;avigion directs that civil penalties levied by
the Securities and Exchange Commission as a refsaity judicial or administrative action under Sarbs-Oxley
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be deposited to a fund for the benefit of harmeesitors. The Federal Accounts for Investor Regiuprovision also requires the Securities
and Exchange Commission to develop methods of iipgacollection rates. The legislation accelerdlestime frame for disclosures by
public companies, as they must immediately discéssematerial changes in their financial conditisroperations. Directors and executive
officers must also provide information for most kfas in ownership in a company's securities withim business days of the change.

Sarbanes-Oxley also increases the oversight ofcadifies certain requirements relating to, audinmittees of public companies and how
they interact with the company's "registered puaticounting firm." Audit Committee members musiriependent and are absolutely ba
from accepting consulting, advisory or other congagory fees from the issuer. In addition, companiast disclose whether at least one
member of the committee is a "financial expert"gash term is defined by the Securities and Exch&@wmmission) and if not, why not.
Under Sarbanes-Oxley, a company's registered pabdicunting firm is prohibited from performing stimirily mandated audit services for a
company if such company's chief executive officaief financial officer, comptroller, chief accoing officer or any person serving in
equivalent positions had been employed by suchdinch participated in the audit of such companyrduthe one-year period preceding the
audit initiation date. Sarbanes-Oxley also prokihity officer or director of a company or any otperson acting under their direction from
taking any action to fraudulently influence, coentenipulate or mislead any independent accouetagaged in the audit of the company's
financial statements for the purpose of rendetirgfinancial statements materially misleading. Saes-Oxley also requires the Securities
and Exchange Commission to prescribe rules requiniclusion of any internal control report and asseent by management in the annual
report to shareholders. Sarbanes-Oxley requiresdhmpany's registered public accounting firm tBaties the audit report to attest to and
report on management's assessment of the compateytsal controls.

Under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@2are required to conduct a comprehensive reaimivassessment of the adequacy of
our existing financial systems and controls. Ferybar ending December 31, 2009, we expect thaaumitors will have to audit our internal
control over financial reporting.

AVAILABILITY OF ANNUAL REPORT

Our Annual Report is available on our website, wiashbancorp.com. We will also provide our Annual &¢pn Form 10-K free of charge
to shareholders who write to the Corporate Segretat04-110 Avenue C, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our loan portfolio consists of a high percentageahs secured by commercial real estate and rfanftily real estate. These loans are riskier
than loans secured by one- to four-family propsrtie

At December 31, 2008, $223.2 million, or 54.1% of tan portfolio consisted of commercial and mtdtinily real estate loans. We intend
continue to emphasize the origination of thesesygfdoans. These loans generally expose a lendgesater risk of
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nonpayment and loss than one- to four-family regtidémortgage loans because repayment of the lofieis depends on the successful
operation and income stream of the borrower's legsinSuch loans typically involve larger loan baésnto single borrowers or groups of
related borrowers compared to one- to four-fanslgidential mortgage loans. Consequently, an adwderngelopment with respect to one loan
or one credit relationship can expose us to afsogimitly greater risk of loss compared to an advelsvelopment with respect to a one- to
four-family residential mortgage loan.

We may not be able to successfully maintain andagermur growth.

Since December 31, 2004, our assets have grownahpound annual growth rate of 11.2%, our loaarz@s have grown at a compound
annual growth rate of 13.4% and our deposits havergat a compound annual growth rate of 5.0%. &hility to continue to grow depends,
in part, upon our ability to expand our market pres, successfully attract core deposits, andifgieaitractive commercial lending
opportunities.

We cannot be certain as to our ability to managecsimsed levels of assets and liabilities. We maeheired to make additional investments
in equipment and personnel to manage higher asgalsland loans balances, which may adversely inquaefficiency ratio, earnings and
shareholder returns.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiemtover actual loan losses, our earnings couldedse.

Our loan customers may not repay their loans adugid the terms of their loans, and the collateeaduring the payment of their loans may
be insufficient to assure repayment. We may expeéseignificant credit losses, which could haveatemial adverse effect on our operating
results. We make various assumptions and judgnaduaist the collectability of our loan portfolio, lnding the creditworthiness of our
borrowers and the value of the real estate and a®ets serving as collateral for the repaymentasfy of our loans. In determining the
amount of the allowance for loan losses, we revaewloans and our loss and delinquency experieamm e evaluate economic conditions.
If our assumptions prove to be incorrect, our atlove for loan losses may not cover losses in @ portfolio at the date of the financial
statements. Material additions to our allowance ld/otaterially decrease our net income. At Decen®de2008, our allowance for loan
losses totaled $5.3 million, representing 1.28%otsl loans.

While we have only been operating for seven yamgshave experienced significant growth in our Ipartfolio, particularly our loans
secured by commercial real estate. Although weebelive have underwriting standards to manage ndemding risks, and although we had
$5.2 million, or 0.89% of total assets consistifiggan-performing assets at December 31, 2008 difficult to assess the future performance
of our loan portfolio due to the relatively recemigination of many of these loans. We can give gowssurance that our non-performing
loans will not increase or that our non-performarglelinquent loans will not adversely affect outufe performance.
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In addition, federal and state regulators peridfjicaview our allowance for loan losses and mayuiee us to increase our allowance for loan
losses or recognize further loan charge-offs. Amyease in our allowance for loan losses or loanggtoffs as required by these regulatory
agencies could have a material adverse effect onesults of operations and financial condition.

We depend primarily on net interest income for @amings rather than fee income.

Net interest income is the most significant comprg our operating income. We do not rely on tiiadial sources of fee income utilized
some community banks, such as fees from salesofance, securities or investment advisory productervices. For the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, our net interest inaease$20.0 million and $17.2 million, respectiveljne amount of our net interest inco

is influenced by the overall interest rate enviremiy competition, and the amount of interest-egraissets relative to the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities. In the event that one or mofé¢hese factors were to result in a decrease imetinterest income, we do not have
significant sources of fee income to make up fareases in net interest income.

If Our Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bankefv York is Classified as Other-Than-Temporarilyphired or as Permanently
Impaired, Our Earnings and Stockholders' Equityl@@ecrease

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bdridesv York (FHLB-NY). We hold the FHLB-NY commonatk to qualify for
membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank Systentahd eligible to borrow funds under the FHNB's advance program. The aggre(
cost and fair value of our FHLB-NY common stockod®ecember 31, 2008 was $5.7 million based opatsvalue. There is no market for
our FHLB-NY common stock.

Recent published reports indicate that certain negrbanks of the Federal Home Loan Bank System raagubject to accounting rules and
asset quality risks that could result in materiédlyer regulatory capital levels. In an extremeaiion, it is possible that the capitalization of a
Federal Home Loan Bank, including the FHLB-NY, abbk substantially diminished or reduced to zemmsequently, we believe that there
is a risk that our investment in FHLB-NY commonckta@ould be deemed other-than-temporarily impaatesbme time in the future, and if
this occurs, it would cause our earnings and stolddns' equity to decrease by the after-tax amofitite impairment charge.

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce oufitatuility.

We realize income primarily from the differenceweén the interest we earn on loans and investnagatshe interest we pay on deposits and
borrowings. The interest rates on our assets abdities respond differently to changes in maikétrest rates, which means our interest-
bearing liabilities may be more sensitive to changemarket interest rates than our interest-egragsets, or vice versa. In either event, if
market interest rates change, this "gap" betweemmhount of interest-earning assets and interestAggliabilities that reprice in
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response to these interest rate changes may waiksagis, and our earnings may be negatively a&ftect

We are unable to predict fluctuations in markegiiest rates, which are affected by, among othéorfscchanges in the following:
o inflation rates;

o business activity levels;

0 money supply; and

o domestic and foreign financial markets.

The value of our investment portfolio and the cosifion of our deposit base are influenced by pilewgimarket conditions and interest rat
Our asset-liability management strategy, whichesighed to mitigate the risk to us from changaenamket interest rates, may not prevent
changes in interest rates or securities market tlows from reducing deposit outflow or from haviegnaterial adverse effect on our results
of operations, our financial condition or the vabfeur investments.

Adverse events in New Jersey, where our businessisentrated, could adversely affect our resultsfature growth.

Our business, the location of our branches andethieestate collateralizing our real estate loaasancentrated in New Jersey. As a result,
we are exposed to geographic risks. The occurrehar economic downturn in New Jersey, or advehsmges in laws or regulations in New
Jersey could impact the credit quality of our asglie business of our customers and our abiligkfrand our business.

Our success significantly depends upon the gromghopulation, income levels, deposits and housingur market area. If the communitie:
which we operate do not grow or if prevailing econo conditions locally or nationally are unfavorapbur business may be negatively
affected. In addition, the economies of the commiesmin which we operate are substantially dependerthe growth of the economy in the
State of New Jersey. To the extent that economiditions in New Jersey are unfavorable or do notinoe to grow as projected, the
economy in our market area would be adversely eftedMoreover, we cannot give any assurance thatiwbenefit from any market grow
or favorable economic conditions in our market aféaey do occur.

In addition, the market value of the real estateigag loans as collateral could be adversely #fby unfavorable changes in market and
economic conditions. As of December 31, 2008, axprately 96.4% of our total loans were secureddal estate. Adverse developments
affecting commerce or real estate values in thalleconomies in our primary market areas couldei@e the credit risk associated with our
loan portfolio. In addition, substantially all ofioloans are to individuals and businesses in Nagey. Our business
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customers may not have customer bases that areegisedas businesses serving regional or nationgfets. Consequently, any decline in the
economy of our market area could have an advergadton our revenues and financial condition. Irtipalar, we may experience increased
loan delinquencies, which could result in a highevision for loan losses and increased charge-afig sustained period of increased non-
payment, delinquencies, foreclosures or lossesecdong adverse market or economic conditions innoanket area could adversely affect the
value of our assets, revenues, results of opesatiod financial condition.

We operate in a highly regulated environment any beaadversely affected by changes in federak statl local laws and regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, superviaiwhexamination by federal and state banking aitigm® Any change in applicable
regulations or federal, state or local legislatonld have a substantial impact on us and our tipasa Additional legislation and regulations
that could significantly affect our powers, auttypand operations may be enacted or adopted ifutbee, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations. Further, regulators have sigaifidiscretion and authority to prevent or
remedy unsafe or unsound practices or violatiodaw$ by banks and bank holding companies in thtspeance of their supervisory and
enforcement duties. The exercise of regulatorya@itthmay have a negative impact on our resultsparations and financial condition.

Like other bank holding companies and financiafifnons, we must comply with significant anti-menlaundering and anti-terrorism laws.
Under these laws, we are required, among othegshio enforce a customer identification program fle currency transaction and
suspicious activity reports with the federal goveemt. Government agencies have substantial disor&giimpose significant monetary
penalties on institutions which fail to comply witiese laws or make required reports. Because w&tgpour business in the highly
urbanized greater Newark/New York City metropolitara, we may be at greater risk of scrutiny byegement regulators for compliance
with these laws.

Our expenses will increase as a result of increiaseBIC insurance premiums.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation imposessaessment against institutions for deposit amag. This assessment is based on the
risk category of the institution and ranges froto 83 basis points of the institution's deposiedédtal law requires that the designated reserve
ratio for the deposit insurance fund be establidghethe FDIC at 1.15% to 1.50% of estimated insutegosits. If this reserve ratio drops
below 1.15% or the FDIC expects that it to do sthimisix months, the FDIC must, within 90 daysaeish and implement a plan to restore
the designated reserve ratio to 1.15% of estimatded deposits within five years (absent extraany circumstances).

Recent bank failures coupled with deterioratingneenic conditions have significantly reduced theatgpinsurance fund's reserve ratio. As
of June 30, 2008, the designated reserve ratidlvid$o of estimated insured deposits at March 30828s a result of this reduced reserve
ratio, on October 16, 2008, the FDIC publishedappsed rule that would restore the reserve ratidis required level. The proposed rule
would raise the current deposit insurance
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assessment rates uniformly for all institutions/lyasis points (to a range from 12 to 50 basistppfor the first quarter of 2009. The
proposed rule would also alter the way the FDICwakes federal deposit insurance assessmentoeg@ming in the second quarter of 2009
and thereafter.

On December 22, 2008, the FDIC published a finlg tlat raises the current deposit insurance asseggates uniformly for all institutions

by 7 basis points (to a range from 12 to 50 bagistp) effective for the first quarter of 2009. Gabruary 27, 2009, the FDIC also issued a
final rule that revises the way the FDIC calculdtzteral deposit insurance assessment rates begirmthe second quarter of 2009. Under
the new rule, the total base assessment rateanmifjer from 7 to 77.5 basis points of the institua®eposits, depending on the risk category of
the institution and the institution's levels of easred debt, secured liabilities, and brokered siégnoAdditionally, the FDIC issued an interim
rule that would impose a special 20 basis poindessment on June 30, 2009, which would be collemeSeptember 30, 2009. However, the
FDIC has indicated a willingness to decrease tleeiahassessment to 10 basis points under ceitaimtstances concerning the overall
financial health of the insurance fund. Speciakasments of 10 and 20 basis points would resaldlditional expense of approximately
$450,000 to $900,000, respectively. The interine malso allows for additional special assessments.

In addition, the Emergency Economic Stabilizatiart 6f 2008 (EESA) temporarily increased the limitleDIC insurance coverage for
deposits to $250,000 through December 31, 2009thenBDIC took action to provide coverage for nevslyued senior unsecured debt and
non-interest bearing transaction and certain NO@duauts in excess of the $250,000 limit, for whiektitutions will be assessed additional
premiums. These actions will significantly increase non-interest expense in 2009 and in futuresyas long as the increased premiums are
in place.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

At December 31, 2008, we conducted our business &nor executive office located at 104-110 Avenu®&yonne, New Jersey, and our
three branch offices, which are located in Bayoama& Hoboken. The aggregate book value of our pesraad equipment was $5.6 million at
December 31, 2008. We own our executive officelifg@nd lease our three branch offices.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved, from time to time, as plaintiff@efendant in various legal actions arising inftbemal course of its business. At December
31, 2008, we were not involved in any material lgaceedings the outcome of which would have aenitadverse affect on our financial
condition or results of operations.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholdearsg the fourth quarter of the year under reg
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

BCB Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock trades on the Agsalobal Market under the symbol "BCBP." In orttelist common stock on the
Nasdaq Global Market, the presence of at least tfegistered and active market makers is requinddB&CB Bancorp, Inc. has at least th
market makers.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsitgy prices for BCB Bancorp, Inc. common stocktfa periods indicated. As of December
31, 2008, there were 4,649,691 shares of BCB Bantoc. common stock outstanding. At December 83082 BCB Bancorp, Inc. had
approximately 1,500 stockholders of record.

Cash Dividend

Fiscal 2008 High Low Declared
Quarter Ended December 31, 2008....... $ 13.2 5 % 998 $ 0.12
Quarter Ended September 30, 2008...... 14.8 7 12.61 0.10
Quarter Ended June 30, 2008........... 14.8 6 13.25 0.10
Quarter Ended March 31, 2008.......... 15.6 7 13.00 0.09

Cash Dividend

Fiscal 2007 High Low Declared
Quarter Ended December 31, 2007....... $ 16.7 0 $ 1480 $ 0.09
Quarter Ended September 30, 2007...... 16.5 0 15.06 0.08
Quarter Ended June 30, 2007........... 18.3 8 16.24 0.08
Quarter Ended March 31, 2007.......... 17.8 7 16.16 0.07

Please see "ltem 1. Business--Bank Regulation-e@ivils" for a discussion of restrictions on theighilf the Bank to pay the Company
dividends.

Compensation Plans

Set forth below is information as of December JI0&regarding equity compensation plans that haeas lapproved by shareholders. The
Company has no equity based benefit plans that m@rapproved by shareholders.

Number of secu rities to be
issued upon exercise of Number of secu rities
outstanding options and  Weighted average remaining availa ble for
Plan rig hts Exercise price(2) issuance under plan
Equity compensation plans approved 295,33 9(1) $10.19
by shareholders................ -0-
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders....... - - -- -0-
Total.oooieeeieeeee 295,33 9 $10.19 -0-

(1) Consists of options to purchase (i) 88,488 ashaf common stock under the 2002 Stock Option &fah(ii) 206,851 shares of common
stock under the 2003 Stock Option Plan.

(2) The weighted average exercise price refle@etercise prices ranging from $9.34 to $15.65pare for options granted under the 2003
Stock Option Plan and ranging from $5.29 to $1féb5share for options under the 2002 Stock Optlan.P
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Stock Performance Graph

Set forth hereunder is a stock performance grapipaoing (a) the cumulative total return on the camratock for the period beginning with
the closing sales price on May 1, 2004 through B 31, 2008, (b) the cumulative total return bipablicly traded commercial bank
stocks over such period, and

(c) the cumulative total return of Nasdaq Marketdx over such period. Cumulative return assumesesihgestment of dividends, and is
expressed in dollars based on an assumed investi®h00.

BCB BANCORP, INC.

Total Return Performance

[THE FOLLOWING TABLE WAS REPRESENTED BY A LINE GRAP H IN THE PRINTED MATERIAL.]

Period Ending
Index 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08
BCB Bancorp, Inc. 100.00 108.81 110.80 121.40 114.82 79.08
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 108.59 110.08 120.56 132.39 78.72
SNL Bank 100.00 112.06 113.59 132.87 103.25 58.91
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On November 20, 2007, the Company announced agtoak repurchase plan to repurchase 5% or 2340@ées of the Company's common
stock. Set forth below is information regardingghases of our common stock made by or on behaitfeo€ompany during the fourth quarter

of 2008.
Total number of shares
purchased as part of a Num ber of shares
Total number of shares A verage price per  publicly announced  remaini ng to be purchased
Period purchased share paid program u nder program
October 1-31 ......... $ - - 162,186
November 1-30 ........ 7,925 10.22 7,925 154,261
December 1-31 ........ 17,763 11.50 25,688 136,498
Total .ceeeneene 25,688 $ 11.11 -

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth selected consoliddiistorical financial and other data of BCB Bamgdnc. at and for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004.fbemation is derived in part from, and should ead together with, the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thefeB&B Bancorp, Inc. Per share data has been tadjtisr all periods to reflect the

common stock dividends paid by the Company.

Selec

2008
Total asSets .......ccovvveeeeenns $ 578,624
Cash and cash equivalents .......... 6,761
Securities, held to maturity ....... 141,280
Loans receivable ................... 406,826
Deposits .............. 410,503
Borrowings 116,124
Stockholders' equity ............... 49,715

Selected

2008

(In

Net interest income ................ $ 19,960
Provision for loan losses .......... 1,300

Non-interest income (loss)
Non-interest expense
Income tax

BaSiC .vevvereerieree i $ 0.75
Diluted ......cccoeeviieiinne $ 074
Dividends declared per share ....... $ 041

ted financial condition data at December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

(In Thousands)

$ 563,477 $ 510,835 $ 466,242 $ 378,289
11,780 25,837 25,147 4,534
165,017 148,672 140,002 117,036
364,654 318,130 284,451 246,380
398,819 382,747 362,851 337,243
114,124 74,124 54,124 14,124
48,510 51,963 47,847 26,036

operating data for the year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004

thousands, except for per share amounts)
$ 17,173 $ 17,784 $ 15883 $ 13,755

600 625 1,118 690
1,092 1,260 915 623
10,718 9,632 8,206 7,661
2,509 3,220 2,745 2,408
$ 4,438 $ 5567 $ 4,729 $ 3,619
$ 092 $ 111 $ 125 $ 097
$ 09 $ 108 $ 120 $ 0.93
$ 032 $ 030 $ - $ -
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At or for the Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Return on average assets (ratio of net
income to average total assets)........... 0.60% 0.83% 1.13% 1.14% 1.01%
Return on average stockholders' equity
(ratio of net income to average
stockholders' equity).........cccceeennee 7.00 8.86 11.12 16.00 15.45
Non-interest income (loss) to average
ASSELS...uvieiieiiiee e (0.36) 0.20 0.26 021 0.17
Non-interest expense to average assets...... 1.97 1.99 196 198 215
Net interest rate spread during the period.. 3.09 271 319 369 3.73
Net interest margin (net interest income
to average interest earning assets)....... 354 3.26 3.69 398 3.96
Ratio of average interest-earning assets
to average interest-bearing liabilities... 1 15.05 116.94 118.09 112.33 111.63
Cash dividend payout ratio.................. 54.67 34.78 26.98 -- -
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans at
end of period.........cccoeeuieeeinnns 0.90 1.16 0.10 0.36 0.40
Allowance for loan losses to
non-performing loans at end of period..... 1 42.27 95.13 1,155.73 299.42 249.60
Allowance for loan losses to total loans
at end of period..........ccceeevunnen. 1.28 1.10 1.16 1.07 1.01
Capital Ratios:
Stockholders' equity to total assets at
end of period.........cccoeeuieeeinnns 859 861 10.17 10.26  6.88
Average stockholders' equity to average
total assets........ccovvevriivienenns 8.61 9.32 10.19 7.14 6.57
Tier 1 capital to average assets............ 9.22 881 1091 7.75 7.75
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets...... 13.38 13.05 1536 1159 11.84

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS

OF OPERATIONS

General

This discussion, and other written material, amdeshents management may make, may contain cestaward-looking statements regarding
the Company's prospective performance and strat@gthin the meaning of Section 27A of the Secesithct of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended. The Company intends such forwarddgaltatements to be covered by the
safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statetsezontained in the Private Securities Litigaticgféd®m Act of 1995, and is including this
statement for purposes of said safe harbor prawssio

Forward-looking information is inherently subjectrisks and uncertainties, and actual results cdifldr materially from those currently
anticipated due to a number of factors, which idelubut are not limited to, factors discussed @m@ompany's Annual Report on Form 10-K
and in other documents filed by the Company with$ecurities and Exchange Commission. Forward-tmp&iatements, which are based on
certain assumptions and describe future plandegies and expectations of the Company, are géyétahtified by the use of the words
"plan," "believe," "expect," "intend," "anticipatd'estimate," "project,” "may," "will," "should,"¢ould," "predicts," "forecasts," "potential,"
“continue" or similar terms or the
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negative of these terms. The Company's abilityréalist results or the actual effects of its planstoategies is inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, actual results may differ materialtpiin anticipated results.

Factors that could have a material adverse efiethe operations of the Company and its subsidianigude, but are not limited to, changes
in market interest rates, general economic condtitegislation, and regulation; changes in mogedad fiscal policies of the United States
Government, including policies of the United Stafesasury and Federal Reserve Board; changes nuiddéy or composition of the loan or
investment portfolios; changes in deposit flowsnpetition, and demand for financial services, loaeposits and investment products in the
Company's local markets; changes in accountingiplies and guidelines; war or terrorist activitiasgd other economic, competitive,
governmental, regulatory, geopolitical and techgadal factors affecting the Company's operationigjmg and services.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamtiesse forward-looking statements, which speai aslof the date of this discussion.
Although the Company believes that the expectatiefiscted in the forward-looking statements assomable, the Company cannot
guarantee future results, levels of activity, perfance or achievements. Except as required bycgtydi law or regulation, the Company
undertakes no obligation to update these forwao#titay statements to reflect events or circumstatizatsoccur after the date on which such
statements were made.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are those accountinlicges that can have a significant impact on tleen@any's financial position and results of
operations that require the use of complex andestibe estimates based upon past experiences amberaent's judgment. Because of the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates, actualtesay differ from these estimates. Below are ¢hoslicies applied in preparing the
Company's consolidated financial statements thatag@ment believes are the most dependent on tlieatjmm of estimates and
assumptions. For additional accounting policies,Sete 2 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Staets."

Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable are presented net of an allowfomdean losses. In determining the appropriatel®f the allowance, management
considers a combination of factors, such as ecanamd industry trends, real estate market conditisize and type of loans in portfolio,
nature and value of collateral held, borrowersfiicial strength and credit ratings, and prepayraedtdefault history. The calculation of the
appropriate allowance for loan losses requireshatantial amount of judgment regarding the imp#&¢he aforementioned factors, as well as
other factors, on the ultimate realization of loagseivable.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Securities

We evaluate on a quarterly basis whether any dexsidre other-than-temporarily impaired. In makimg determination, we consider the
extent and duration of the impairment, the natmet financial health of the issuer and our abilitgl éntent to hold securities for a
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period sufficient to allow for any anticipated rgegy in market value. Other considerations incladeview of the credit quality of the issuer
and the existence of a guarantee or insurancpplicable to the security. If a security is detered to be other-than-temporarily impaired, we
record an impairment loss as a charge to incomthéoperiod in which the impairment loss is detedi to exist, resulting in a reduction to
our earnings for that period.

Financial Condition

Comparison at December 31, 2008 and at December 2007

Since we commenced operations in 2000 we have stwghow our assets and deposit base consistémtonr capital requirements. We of
competitive loan and deposit products and seekstinduish ourselves from our competitors through service and availability. Total assets
increased by $15.1 million or 2.7% to $578.6 milliat December 31, 2008 from $563.5 million at Deloen81, 2007 as the Company
continued to grow the Bank's balance sheet withddanded primarily through growth in the Bank'pagt base and the utilization of
wholesale funding sources, specifically Federal ddman Bank advances.

Total cash and cash equivalents decreased by $lidhmor 42.4% to $6.8 million at December 31, 30@om $11.8 million at December 31,
2007 reflecting management's decision, with monayket rates at historically low levels, to deplbgge liquid assets into loans in an effort
to achieve higher returns. Securities held-to-niigtdecreased by $23.7 million or 14.4% to $141iBion at December 31, 2008 from
$165.0 million at December 31, 2007. The decreasemimarily attributable to call options exerciged$78.9 million of callable agency
securities and $5.5 million of repayments and pyepnts in the mortgage backed securities portfiliong the year ended December 31,
2008, partially offset by purchases of $47.3 millaf callable agency securities and $13.3 milliothe mortgage backed securities.

Loans receivable increased by $42.1 million or ¥dt6 $406.8 million at December 31, 2008 from $364illion at December 31, 2007. The
increase resulted primarily from a $46.4 milliognease in real estate mortgages comprising re&dlesemmercial, construction and
participation loans with other financial institut®, net of amortization, and a $2.8 million inceeasconsumer loans, net of amortization,
partially offset by a $5.8 million decrease in coernial loans comprising business loans and comaldiees of credit, net of amortization,
and a $1.2 million increase in the allowance famldosses. At December 31, 2008, the allowancé&or losses was $5.3 million or 1.28% of
loans receivable. The growth in loans receivable pramarily attributable to competitive pricinganiower than historically normal interest
rate environment.

Deposit liabilities increased by $11.7 million a8% to $410.5 million at December 31, 2008 from&89million at December 31, 2007. The
increase resulted primarily from an increase of.$20illion or 9.6% in time deposits to $235.0 nuflifrom $214.5 million, partially offset t
a decrease of $8.0 million or 9.5% in demand deptsi$75.9 million from $83.9 million and a deseaf $855,000 or 0.9% in savings and
club accounts to $99.6 million from $100.4 milliorhe decrease in demand, savings and club accalardes resulted primarily from
internal disintermediation brought on by an inchegly competitive local market
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for deposit growth. The Bank has been able to aehawerall growth in deposits through competitivieipg on select deposit products.

Total borrowed money increased by $2.0 million &% to $116.1 million at December 31, 2008 from4k1Imillion at December 31, 2007.
The increase in borrowings reflects the use of Fddéome Loan Bank advances to augment depostteaBank's funding source for
originating loans.

Total stockholders' equity increased by $1.2 millay 2.5% to $49.7 million at December 31, 2008Mi$48.5 million at December 31, 2007.
The increase in stockholders' equity primarilyeets net income of $3.5 million for the year enBegtember 31, 2008 and the exercise of
stock options during the year to purchase 104,8@8es of the Company's common stock for a totappfoximately $925,000, partially
offset by the repurchase of 93,029 shares of tag@2oy's common stock through the stock repurchiases in place at a cost during the year
of $1.3 million and cash dividends paid throughykar totaling $1.9 million. At December 31, 2068 Bank's Tier 1 leverage, Tier 1 risk-
based and Total risk-based capital ratios were?®,23.38%, and 14.63% respectively.

Analysis of Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between @geincome on intere-earning assets and interest expense on interagtibdiabilities. Net
interest income depends on the relative amountg@fest-earning assets and intefgstring liabilities and the interest rates earneoldd on
them, respectively.
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The following tables set forth balance sheets, ayeields and costs, and certain other informdtiothe periods indicated. All average
balances are daily average balances. The yieldersletbelow include the effect of deferred feeiscdunts and premiums, which are included

in interest income.

At December

Actual
Balance

Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable (1) ............... $ 413,552
Investment securities(2) ... .. 147,904
Interest-earning deposits . 3,266

Total interest-earning assets ..... 564,722

Interest-earning liabilities:
Interest-bearing demand deposits ... $ 25,843

Money market deposits .............. 19,539
Savings deposits .......... 99,586
Certificates of deposit .. 234,974
Borrowings .........cccceen. 116,124
Total interest-bearing
liabilities .........cceeee.... 496,066

Net interest income ..................

Interest rate spread(3) ..............

Net interest margin(4) ...............

Ratio of interest-earning assets
to interest-bearing liabilities ....  113.84%

(1) Excludes allowance for loan losses.

31,2008 The year ended December 31, 2008 The

Actual

Average

Yield/ Average Interest Yield/ Ave
Cost Balance earned/paid Cost (5) Bal

(Dollars i

7.09% $393,198 $
5,55 161,281
0.06 10,034

6.65% 564,513

1.25% $ 23,930 $

2.43 26,697

1.32 100,754
3.87 220,375
4.28 118,920

n Thousands)

27,248 6.96% $ 33
9,185 570 16
190 189 2

36,623 6.49% 52

300 1.25% $ 2
746 279 1
1,370 136 10
9,106 4.13 20
5141 432 9

16,663 3.40% 45

115.05%

(2) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank of New Yorlckto

year ended December 31, 2007

Average
rage Interest Yield/
ance earned/paid Cost (5)

9,057 $ 24,365 7.19%
1,707 8,843 5.47
6,010 1,182 4.54

6,774 34,390 6.53%

(3) Interest rate spread represents the differbat@een the average yield on interest-earning aeset the average cost of interest-bearing

liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interesirimeas a percentage of average interest-earniatpass

(5) Average yields are computed using annualizestést income and expense for the periods.
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The year ended December 31, 2006

Average
Average Interest  Yield/Cost
Balance earned/paid  (5)
(Do llars in Thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable (1) .............. $ 315,493 $ 22,770 7.22%
Investment securities(2) .......... 153,628 8,046 5.24
Interest-earning deposits ... 12,569 445 3.54
Total interest-earning assets .. 481,690 31,261 6.49%
Interest-earning liabilities:
Interest-bearing demand deposits .. $ 21,397 302 1.41%
Money market deposits ............. 3,353 124 3.70
Savings deposits ............ ... 137,046 2,611 1.91
Certificates of deposit ........... 182,340 7,807 4.28
BOrrowings .......cccceeevveennn. 63,775 2,633 4.13
Total interest-bearing
liabilities .................. 407,911 13,477 3.30%
Net interest income .................. $ 17,784
Interest rate spread(3) .............. 3.19%
Net interest margin(4) ............... 3.69%

Ratio of average interest-earning
assets to average interest-bearing
liabilities .........cccccevene 118.09%

(1) Excludes allowance for loan losses.
(2) Includes Federal Home Loan Bank of New Yorlckto

(3) Interest rate spread represents the differbat@een the average yield on interest-earning aeset the average cost of interest-bearing
liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interesirimeas a percentage of average interest-earniatpass
(5) Average yields are computed using annualizegtést income and expense for the periods.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The table below sets forth certain information regg changes in our interest income and intengstrse for the periods indicated. For each
category of interest-earning assets and interesirigeliabilities, information is provided on chawmattributable to (i) changes in average
volume (changes in average volume multiplied byrate); (ii) changes in rate (change in rate mliétipby old average volume); (iii) chanc
due to combined changes in rate and volume; afdh@net change.

Years Ended December 31,

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
Inc rease/(Decrease) Increase /(Decrease)
Due to D ue to
————————————————————————————— Total  ---------me- mmmeneeeeeeen Total
Rate/ Increase Rate/ Increase
Volume Rate  Volume (Decrease) Volume Rate Volume (Decrease)
(In Thousands)
Interest income:
Loans receivable .... $ (869) $(139) $ 2,883 $1,701 $ 98) $ (8 $ 1,595
Investment securitie: 366 1) 342 423 355 19 797
Interest-earning deposits
banks ..o (689) 423 (992) 476 126 135 737
Total interest-earning assets ....... 3,142 (1,192) 283 2,233 2,600 383 146 3,129
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing demand accounts .... 40 (30) (4) 6 4) 4) -- 8)
Money market ...........c.coceu..... 392 (231) (127) 34 512 15 61 588
Savings and club .................... (140) (385) 29 (496)  (536) (263) 54 (745)
Certificates of Deposits ... 508 (2,439) (72) (1,003) 1,177 978 147 2,302
Borrowed funds ..........cccceeee. 1,157 (198) (54) 905 1,22 259 120 1,603
Total interest-bearing liabilities .. 1,957 (2,283) (228) (554) 2,373 985 382 3,740
Change in net interest income .......... $1,185 $ 1,091 $511 $ 2,787 $ 227 $ (602) $(236) $ (611)

Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb&1, 2008 and 2007

Net income decreased by $970,000 or 21.8% to $8idion for the year ended December 31, 2008 freh¥8 million for the year ende
December 31, 2007. The decrease in net incomeedguiimarily from a decrease in non-interest ineand increases in the provision for
loan losses and non-interest expense, partialeoffy an increase in net interest income and i@dsee in income taxes. Net interest income
increased by $2.8 million or 16.3% to $20.0 millfon the year ended December 31, 2008 from $17lmfor the year ended December
2007. The increase in net interest income resuyltedarily from an increase of $37.7 million or 7.286the average balance of interest ear
assets to $564.5 million for the year ended Dece®bge2008 from $526.8 million for the year endescBmber 31, 2007 offset by a decrease
in the average yield on interest earning asse@sAt@ for the year ended December 31, 2008 fror3%.for the year ended December 31,
2007. The average balance of interest bearinditiabiincreased by $40.3 million or 8.9% to $49fhiflion at December 31, 2008 from
$450.4 million at December 31, 2007 while the agereost of interest bearing liabilities decrease8.40% for the year ended December 31,
2008 from 3.82% for the year ended December 317 288 a result of the aforementioned, our net egemargin increased to 3.54% for the
year ended December 31, 2008 from 3.26% for the geded December 31, 20(
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The decrease in non-interest income resulted pilyrfeom an other than temporary impairment (OT&harge of $2.9 million on a $3.0
million investment in Federal National Mortgage #sisition (FNMA) preferred stock. The increase im+iigterest expense reflected a change
to income resulting from the discovery of a depbsitid scheme by a commercial client of the Barlle Bank recorded a $560,000 loss in
other non-interest expense related to this incidem Bank and Company anticipate that any futeceveries may partially offset this loss;
however there can be no assurance of the levabbapility of any recovery. The Bank and the Conmyplaave notified its insurance carriers.

Interest income on loans receivable increased g ®dlion or 11.5% to $27.2 million for the yeanded December 31, 2008 from $24.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Tloegase was primarily due to an increase in avdoages receivable of $52.6 million or
15.5% to $393.2 million for the year ended Decen@igr2008 from $339.1 million for the year endect&aber 31, 2007, partially offset by

a decrease in the average yield on loans receivali®6% for the year ended December 31, 2008 #dra% for the year ended December
31, 2007. The increase in the average balanceantloeflects management's philosophy of deployingd in higher yielding instruments,
specifically commercial real estate loans, in dorefo achieve higher returns. The decrease imameeyield reflects the competitive price
environment prevalent in the Bank's primary magdet for commercial and construction loans as agethe effect of the actions taken by the
Federal Open Market Committee to reduce interéssm@uring 2008.

Interest income on securities increased by $34200@09% to $9.2 million for the year ended Decengie 2008 from $8.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The increase waaiisirattributable to an increase in the averagddydn securities to 5.70% for the y
ended December 31, 2008 from 5.47% for the yeagetcember 31, 2007, partially offset by a sldgatrease in the average balance of
securities of $426,000 or 0.3% to $161.3 milliontfee year ended December 31, 2008 from $161.7amifbr the year ended December 31,
2007. The decrease in average balances reflectssthiag agencies decision to exercise their galbas on a select number of securities
which resulted in decreases to the investmentg@atfThe increase in average yield reflects thut flaat the exercise of call options discussed
above occurred on seasoned securities whose yaddess than those securities remaining in thestnvent portfolio.

Interest income on other interest-earning assetsisting primarily of federal funds sold decreabg$992,000 or 83.9% to $190,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2008 from $1.2 milliortlieryear ended December 31, 2007. This decreasprmaarily due to an decrease in1
average balance of other interest-earning assé&$600 million or 61.5% to $10.0 million for theareended December 31, 2008 from $26.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2007 add@ease in the average yield on other interesiirgpassets to 1.89% for the year ended
December 31, 2008 from 4.54% for the year endecidber 31, 2007. As a result of the lower interatt environment for overnight
deposits during the year ended December 31, 2088crase in the average balance resulted, as srapagdeployed funds into loans in an
effort to achieve higher returns.
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Total interest expense decreased by $554,000 & ®216.7 million for the year ended December2808 from $17.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. This decrease resulteeiilsi from a decrease in the average cost oféstdvearing liabilities to 3.40% for the
year ended December 31, 2008 from 3.82% for thegeded December 31, 2007, partially offset byramaase in the balance of total inte
bearing deposit liabilities of $14.8 million or 46lto $371.8 million for the year ended December2BD8 from $357.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007, and an increase in thadmbf average borrowings of $25.5 million or 24 ® $118.9 million for the year end
December 31, 2008, from $93.4 million for the yeaded December 31, 2007.

The provision for loan losses totaled $1.3 millaomd $600,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002007, respectively. The provision
for loan losses is established based upon managsmariew of the Bank's loans and consideratioa wériety of factors including, but not
limited to, (1) the risk characteristics of therdgaortfolio, (2) current economic conditions, (8}l losses previously experienced, (4) the
significant level of loan growth and (5) the exigfilevel of reserves for loan losses that are ptesaind estimable. During 2008, the Bank
experienced $61,000 in net charge-offs (consisiir§101,000 in charge-offs and $40,000 in recogriburing 2007, the Bank experienced
$268,000 in net charge-offs (consisting of $285,B0¢harge-offs and $17,000 in recoveries). ThekBead non-accrual loans totaling $3.7
million at December 31, 2008 and $3.8 million actBmber 31, 2007. The allowance for loan lossedsa&5.3 million or 1.28% of gross
total loans at December 31, 2008 as compared foriflion or 1.10% of gross total loans at DecembEr2007. The amount of the
allowance is based on estimates and the ultimatefmay vary from such estimates. Managementsassthe allowance for loan losses on a
quarterly basis and makes provisions for loan bssenecessary in order to maintain the adequatedllowance. While management uses
available information to recognize loses on loduisire loan loss provisions may be necessary basethanges in the aforementioned crit
In addition, various regulatory agencies, as amgral part of their examination process, periodiaaview the allowance for loan losses and
may require the Bank to recognize additional priovis based on their judgment of information avadéab them at the time of their
examination. Management believes that the allowémclvan losses was adequate at both Decemb&0B8, and 2007.

Total non-interest income decreased by $3.2 milima loss of $2.1 million for the year ended DebenB1, 2008 from income of $1.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2007. Téerelase in non-interest income resulted primardynfan other than temporary
impairment (OTTI) charge of $2.9 million on a $8nllion investment in Federal National Mortgage Asisition (FNMA) preferred stock as
well as a $283,000 decrease in gain on sales n§lodginated for sale, to $137,000 for the yeateehDecember 31, 2008 from $420,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2007, and a $12,008adecin gain on sale of real estate owned, pgrtiEiket by a $64,000 or 9.7% increase
in fees, service charges and other income to $023d@ the year ended December 31, 2008 from $688Xdr the year ended December 31,
2007. The decrease in gain on sale of loans otigih@r sale reflects the softening one-to fourifamesidential real estate market during
2008.

Total non-interest expense increased by $596,080686 to $11.3 million for the year ended Decen83er2008 from $10.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. "
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increase in non-interest expense resulted primfdiy the discovery of a deposit fraud scheme bgramercial client of the Bank during
2008. The Bank recorded a $560,000 loss relatdiigdncident. The Bank and Company anticipate fimatre recoveries may partially offset
this loss; however there can be no assurance dévieeor probability of any recovery. The Bank @ahd Company have notified its insurance
carrier. Salaries and employee benefits expenseaksed by $207,000 or 3.6% to $5.5 million forykar ended December 31, 2008 from
$5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 200iis decrease resulted from a decrease in full @meévalent employees to eighty-five
(85) at December 31, 2008 from ninety-three (93)atember 31, 2007 and from eighty-seven (87) aebber 31, 2006. Occupancy
expense increased by $59,000 or 5.9% to $1.1 mifbo the year ended December 31, 2008 from $1ldomior the year ended December
31, 2007. Equipment expense increased by $113,080% to $2.0 million for the year ended Decenfer2008 from $1.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The primary compafehis expense item is data service provider egpavhich increases with the grov

of the Bank's assets. Advertising expense decrdas&85,000 or 26.1% to $241,000 for the year erdecember 31, 2008 from $326,000
for the year ended December 31, 2007. Other namest expense increased by $156,000 or 8.7% todillidn for the year ended December
31, 2008 from $1.8 million for the year ended Deben8B1, 2007. The increase in other non-intergs¢lse is primarily attributable to
increases in expenses commensurate with a growangtise. Other non-interest expense is compribditertors' fees, stationary, forms and
printing, professional fees, legal fees, checktpri) correspondent bank fees, telephone and corneatiion, shareholder relations and other
fees and expenses.

Income tax expense decreased $689,000 or 27.5%8mdllion for the year ended December 31, 200&f62.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007 reflecting decreased pre-taxmeosarned during 2008. The consolidated effectizerne tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2008 was 34.4% and for the year eDdedmber 31, 2007 was 36.1%.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended Decemb&l, 2007 and 2006

Net income decreased by $1.13 million or 20.3%4@& million for the year ended December 31, 266hf$5.57 million for the year end:
December 31, 2006. The decrease in net incometedsulimarily from decreases in net interest inc@me non-interest income and an
increase in non-interest expense, partially offsetlecreases in the provision for loan losses,remwme taxes. Net interest income decreased
by $611,000 or 3.4% to $17.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2007 from $17.8 million for tearyended December 31, 2006. This
decrease in net interest income resulted prim&diy an increase of $42.6 million or 10.4% in thverage balance of interest-bearing
liabilities to $450.5 million for the year ended d@eber 31, 2008 from $407.9 million for the yeadesh December 31, 2006 and an increase
in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities to 3¥82or the year ended December 31, 2008 from 3.3f%hne year ended December 31, 2006.
The average balance of interest-earning assetsased by $45.1 million or 9.4% to $526.8 milliorDetcember 31, 2008 from $481.7 million
at December 31, 2006 while the yield on interestieg assets increased slightly to 6.53% for ther ymded December 31, 2008 from 6.49%
for the year ended December 31, 2006. As a consequa the
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aforementioned, our net interest margin decreas8X6% for the year ended December 31, 2008 fr@908 for the year ended December
31, 2006.

Interest income on loans receivable increased by illion or 7.0% to $24.4 million for the yeardsd December 31, 2007 from $22.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Tloegase was primarily due to an increase in avdoages receivable of $23.6 million or
7.5% to $339.1 million for the year ended Deceng8ier2008 from $315.5 million for the year ended &aber 31, 2006, partially offset by a
slight decrease in the average yield on loansvabés to 7.19% for the year ended December 31, 8@d7 7.22% for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The increase in the averagadmlts loans reflects management's philosophy pliogég funds in higher yielding
instruments, specifically commercial real estatmboin an effort to achieve higher returns. Theelese in average yield reflects the
competitive price environment prevalent in the Bamkimary market area for commercial and conswndbans as well as the effect of the
actions taken by the Federal Open Market Committeeduce interest rates during the latter hal#@d7.

Interest income on securities increased by $79700®@09% to $8.8 million for the year ended Decengie 2007 from $8.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. The increase waaiisirattributable to an increase in the averadara® of securities of $8.1 million
5.3% to $161.7 million for the year ended Decen8igr2007 from $153.6 million for the year ended &aber 31, 2006, and an increase in
the average yield on securities to 5.47% for ther y;ded December 31, 2007 from 5.24% for the geded December 31, 2006. The
increase in average balances reflects managerpaitdsophy to deploy funds in investments, absent@portunity to originate higher
yielding loans, in an effort to achieve higher rati

Interest income on other interest-earning assetsisting primarily of federal funds sold increasgd$737,000 or 165.6% to $1.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007 from $445,00théoyear ended December 31, 2006. This increasgsiaarily due to an increase in the
average balance of other interest-earning ass&$34 million or 106.3% to $26.0 million for thear ended December 31, 2007 from $12.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2006 antharease in the average yield on other interestie@ assets to 4.54% for the year ended
December 31, 2007 from 3.54% for the year endecDéer 31, 2006. During 2007, as short term intestst remained elevated and the
yield curve remained inverted through the majooityhe year, increased balances in cash and casbhagent accounts, in the absence

higher yielding loan product, provided a compettineld while affording management the latitudegsearch more profitable investment
opportunities.

Total interest expense increased by $3.7 millio@%4% to $17.2 million for the year ended Decen8ier2007 from $13.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. This increase rddudte an increase in the average balance of itatiaes-bearing deposit liabilities of
$12.9 million or 3.7% to $357.0 million for the yeended December 31, 2007 from $344.1 million far year ended December 31, 2006,
an increase of $29.6 million or 46.4% in averagedwings to $93.4 million for the year ended DecemBl, 2007, from $63.8 million for t
year ended December 31, 2006, as well as an ircnedise average cost of intel-bearing liabilities to 3.82% for the year endedc®mber
31, 2007 from 3.30% for the year ended Decembe@06.
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The provision for loan losses totaled $600,000 $625,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002@®@, respectively. The provision for
loan losses is established based upon managemei¢e of the Bank's loans and consideration cdigety of factors including, but not
limited to, (1) the risk characteristics of therdgaortfolio, (2) current economic conditions, (8}l losses previously experienced, (4) the
significant level of loan growth and (5) the exigtilevel of reserves for loan losses that are grieband estimable. During 2007, the Bank
experienced $268,000 in net charge-offs (consigifr285,000 in charge-offs and $17,000 in recagriDuring 2006, the Bank experienced
$18,000 in net recoveries (consisting of $85,00@aoveries and $67,000 in charge-offs). The Batkrion-accrual loans totaling $3.8
million at December 31, 2007 and $323,000 at Deeerih, 2006. The allowance for loan losses sto&@d 4t million or 1.10% of gross total
loans at December 31, 2007 as compared to $3.ibmdl 1.16% of gross total loans at December B062The amount of the allowance is
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfneamnysuch estimates. Management assesses theaattevior loan losses on a quarterly
basis and makes provisions for loan losses as segeis order to maintain the adequacy of the aloge. While management uses available
information to recognize loses on loans, futurenltwess provisions may be necessary based on chantiesaforementioned criteria. In
addition, various regulatory agencies, as an iadguart of their examination process, periodicadlyiew the allowance for loan losses and
may require the Bank to recognize additional priovis based on their judgment of information avaéab them at the time of their
examination. Management believes that the allow#mclvan losses was adequate at both Decemb&0BY, and 2006.

Total non-interest income decreased by $168,00(B&% to $1.1 million for the year ended Decemlder2p07 from $1.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease -interest income resulted primarily from a $215,0@@rease in gain on sales of loans
originated for sale, to $420,000 for the year erldedember 31, 2007 from $635,000 for the year efEmmber 31, 2006, partially offset
a $34,000 increase in fees, service charges aed iotome to $659,000 for the year ended Decembe2®7 from $625,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2006 and a $13,000 increasenirog sale of non-performing loans. The decreasgmin on sale of loans originated for
sale reflects the softening one-to four-family desitial real estate market during the year 2007.

Total noninterest expense increased by $1.1 million or 11t&%il0.7 million for the year ended December 3D 2from $9.6 million for th
year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in®@6primarily due to an increase of $489,000 o¥®id salaries and employee bene
expense to $5.7 million for the year ended DecertheP007 from $5.2 million for the year ended Daber 31, 2006 as the Bank increased
staffing levels and compensation in an effort twise its growing customer base. Full time equiaalemployees increased to ninety-three
(93) at December 31, 2007 from eighty-seven (8 Deatember 31, 2006 and eighty-two (82) at DecerBheP005. Occupancy expense
increased by $100,000 or 11.1% to $1.0 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2007 from $900,00théyear ended December 31, 2006.
Equipment expense increased by $172,000 or 9.9%.®million for the year ended December 31, 200mf$1.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The primary component of thpgeage item is data service provider expense whioteases with the growth of the
Bank's assets. Advertising expense remained relatstable at $326,000 for the year ended Dece®ibe2007 as compared to $329,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2006. Other non-ititeres
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expense increased by $328,000 or 22.5% to $1.&miibr the year ended December 31, 2007 from 8iill§on for the year ended Decemt
31, 2006. The increase in other non-interest ex@engrimarily attributable to increases in expensammensurate with a growing franchise.
Other non-interest expense is comprised of dirstfees, stationary, forms and printing, profesaidees, legal fees, check printing,
correspondent bank fees, telephone and commumgati@reholder relations and other fees and expense

Income tax expense decreased $711,000 or 22.1%53m8llion for the year ended December 31, 200Wf$3.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 reflecting decreased pre-taxmeosarned during 2007. The consolidated effectizerne tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was 36.1% and for the year eDdedmber 31, 2006 was 36.6%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our funding sources include income from operatiaieposits and borrowings and principal payment®ans and investment securities.
While maturities and scheduled amortization of bband securities are predictable sources of futejmsit outflows and mortgage
prepayments are greatly influenced by the genevall lof interest rates, economic conditions andpmtition.

Our primary investing activities are the originatiof commercial and multi-family real estate loamse- to four-family mortgage loans,
construction, commercial business and consumes|awell as the purchase of mortgage-backed thed imvestment securities. During
2008 loan originations totaled $110.7 million comgzhto $142.5 million and $119.6 million for 2007da2006, respectively. The continued
strength of loan originations reflects managemaesfttsts to increase our total assets, the contifaeus on increasing commercial and multi-
family lending operations and the refinance mank&008.

During 2008, cash flow provided by the calls, miites and principal repayments and prepaymentsweden securities held-to-maturity
amounted to $84.4 million compared to $21.0 millovd $28.8 million in 2007 and 2006. Deposit gropthvided $11.7 million, $16.1
million and $19.9 million of funding to facilitatesset growth for the years ending December 31,,200% and 2006, respectively.
Borrowings increased $2.0 million in 2008 with adhial shortterm borrowings of $24.0 million and repayment$22.0 million through th
FHLB.

Loan Commitments. In the ordinary course of busirthe Bank extends commitments to originate resialesmd commercial loans and other
consumer loans. Commitments to extend credit ameagents to lend to a customer as long as thee véolation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments geneteliye fixed expiration dates or other terminaticauskes and may require payment of a fee.
Since the Bank does not expect all of the commitmemnbe funded, the total commitment amounts damaoessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customed#wbprthiness on a case-by-case basis. Collataglbe obtained based upon
management's assessment of the customers' cretthitvems. Commitments to extend credit may be writte a fixed rate basis exposing the
Bank to interest rate risk given the possibilitattmarket rates may change between the commitnag¢atachd the actual extension of credit.
The Bank had outstanding commitments to
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originate and fund loans of approximately $46.1liarland $57.4 million at December 31, 2008 and7208spectively.
The following tables sets forth our contractualigdions and commercial commitments at Decembe2@08.

Payments due by period
Less thanl 1-3 More than 3-5 More than 5
Contractual obligations Total Y ear Years Years Years

(In Thousands)

Borrowed money ................ $ 116,124 $ 2000 $ - % - $ 114,124
Lease obligations ............. 4,297 425 610 402 2,860
Certificates of deposit ....... 234,974 1 88,112 38,577 8,235 50
Total .o $355,395 $ 1 90,537 $39,187 $ 8,637 $ 117,034

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uoiard ("FASB") issued Statement No. 160 "Nonaihitg Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements--an amendment of ARB No. bhls Statement establishes accounting and repastarglards for the noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsoligeatiba subsidiary. The guidance will become effexts of the beginning of a company's
fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. Chmpany believes that this new pronouncement willrave a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 162¢"Herarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prihes.” This Statement identifies
the sources of accounting principles and the fraomkvior selecting the principles used in the prafian of financial statements. This
Statement is effective 60 days following the SEaproval of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbard amendments to AU Section
411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in ConformitighnwGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles.” Tbempany believes that this new
pronouncement will not have a material impact srcdnsolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi&isP") EITF 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instrume@ranted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securiti€his FSP clarifies that all outstanding unvesteais-based payment awards that contain
rights to nonforfeitable dividends participate imdistributed earnings with common shareholders. iiwaf this nature are considered
participating securities and the two-class methfotbmputing basic and diluted earnings per sharst iné applied. This FSP is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Chpany does not expect that EITF 03-6-1 will hameémpact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2008, the SEC released a proposed rgadegarding the potential use by U.S. issueriahtial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards ("IFRS"). IFRS is a comprehensive sefie&oounting standards published by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASRInder the proposed roadmap, the Company magdpgred to prepare financial
statements in accordance with IFRS
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as early as 2014. The SEC will make a determinati@®®11 regarding the mandatory adoption of IFIR& Company is currently assessing
the impact that this potential change would havésoonsolidated financial statements, and it adlhtinue to monitor the development of
potential implementation of IFRS.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified Emerging Isstiask Force ("EITF") Issue No. 08-6, "Equity Methogestment Accounting
Considerations". EITF 08-6 clarifies the accounfimgcertain transactions and impairment considematinvolving equity method
investments. EITF 08-6 is effective for fiscal y&@beginning after December 15, 2008, with earlyptida prohibited. The Company does not
expect that EITF 08-6 will have an impact on itesalidated financial statements.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue R8-7, "Accounting for Defensive Intangible Asse&ITF 08-7 clarifies the accounting
for certain separately identifiable intangible @assehich an acquirer does not intend to actively liust intends to hold to prevent its
competitors from obtaining access to them. EITFG8quires an acquirer in a business combinati@ceount for a defensive intangible a
as a separate unit of accounting which should bartérad to expense over the period the asset ditmési in value. EITF 08-7 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 200&) witrly adoption prohibited. This new pronouncenéhtimpact the Company's
accounting for any defensive intangible assetsie®djin a business combination completed begindamuary 1, 2009.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 14@4a%B Interpretation ("FIN") 46(R)-8, "Disclosurbg Public Entities (Enterprises)
about Transfers of Financial Assets and Interestéariable Interest Entities". FSP SFAS 140-4 ald 46(R)-8 amends FASB SFAS 140
"Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finahd&asets and Extinguishments of Liabilities", tquée public entities to provide additior
disclosures about transfers of financial assetdstt amends FIN 46(R), "Consolidation of Varidllieerest Entities", to require public
enterprises, including sponsors that have a varigberest in a variable interest entity, to prevatlditional disclosures about their
involvement with variable interest entities. Additally, this FSP requires certain disclosures tpriogided by a public enterprise that is (a) a
sponsor of a qualifying special purpose entity €9Rhat holds a variable interest in the qualifyBPE but was not the transferor of financial
assets to the qualifying SPE and (b) a serviceraialifying SPE that holds a significant variaiplerest in the qualifying SPE but was not
the transferor of financial assets to the qualfy8PE. The disclosures required by FSP SFAS 14®4-8N

46(R)-8 are intended to provide greater transpgréméinancial statement users about a transfecorsinuing involvement with transferred
financial assets and an enterprise's involvemetht variable interest entities and qualifying SPESP SFAS 14@ and FIN 46(R) is effectiv
for reporting periods (annual or interim) endingeaDecember 15, 2008. The adoption of this pronement did not have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

In January 2009, the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-2@&+thendments to the Impairment of Guidance of EI$8uke No. 99-20". FSP EITF 99-
20-1 amends the impairment guidance in EITF Issoied9-20, "Recognition of Interest Income and Impa&int on Purchased Beneficial
Interests and Beneficial Interests That ContinuBedield by a Transferor in Securitized

52



Financial Assets", to achieve more consistent detextion of whether an other-than-temporary impaintrhas occurred. FSP EITF 99-20-1
also retains and emphasizes the objective of ar-dtlan-temporary impairment assessment and tatedetlisclosure requirements in SFAS
No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Dabd Equity Securities”, and other related guigafSP EITF 9-20-1 is effective for
interim and annual reporting periods ending aftec&@nber 15, 2008, and shall be applied prospegtiRaltrospective application to a prior
interim or annual reporting period is not permitt&tle adoption of EITF 99-20-1 did not have a matémpact on our consolidated financial
statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Management of Market Risk

Qualitative Analysis. The majority of our assets ¢inbilities are monetary in nature. Consequertig of our most significant forms of
market risk is interest rate risk. Our assets, isting primarily of mortgage loans, have longer undiies than our liabilities, consisting
primarily of deposits. As a result, a principaltpairour business strategy is to manage interéstrisk and reduce the exposure of our net
interest income to changes in market interest rétesordingly, our Board of Directors has estal#@tan Asset/Liability Committee which is
responsible for evaluating the interest rate nidierent in our assets and liabilities, for deterngjrihe level of risk that is appropriate given
our business strategy, operating environment, @agifuidity and performance objectives, and farmaging this risk consistent with the
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. 8emianagement monitors the level of interest rigtean a regular basis and the
Asset/Liability Committee, which consists of semaanagement and outside directors operating ungdeliey adopted by the Board of
Directors, meets as needed to review our assdlifljgtolicies and interest rate risk position.

Quantitative Analysis. The following table presetiis Company's net portfolio value ("NPV"). Thesdcalations were based upon
assumptions believed to be fundamentally soundpadth they may vary from assumptions utilized theofiinancial institutions. The
information set forth below is based on data theltided all financial instruments as of December28D8. Assumptions have been made by
the Company relating to interest rates, loan prejt rates, core deposit duration, and the maddees of certain assets and liabilities ur
the various interest rate scenarios. Actual matuldttes were used for fixed rate loans and ceatdi@accounts. Investment securities were
scheduled at either the maturity date or the nelx¢duled call date based upon management's judgrhesiether the particular security
would be called in the current interest rate eminent and under assumed interest rate scenaridgabléarate loans were scheduled as of
their next scheduled interest rate repricing datklitional assumptions made in the preparatiorhefNPV table include prepayment rates on
loans and mortgage-backed securities, core depuigitsut stated maturity dates were scheduled aitlassumed term of 48 months, and
money market and noninterest bearing accounts sefreduled with an assumed term of 24 months. TRé MPPAR" represents the
difference between the Company's estimated valassdts and estimated value of liabilities assumighange in interest rates. The NPV
for a decrease of 100 to 300 basis points has
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been excluded since it would not be meaningfulh@interest rate environment as of December 318 20he following sets forth the
Company's NPV as of December 31, 2008.

NPV as a % of Assets

Change in Net Portfolio $ Change from % Cha nge from ----------omememeee-
calculation Value PAR PAR NPV Ratio Change
+300bp $ 33,632 $ (34,528) - 50.66% 6.21% (528)bp
+200bp 59,526 (8,634) - 12.67 10.61 (88)bp
+100bp 70,348 2,188 3.21 12.07 58 bp
PAR 68,160 - - 11.49
-100bp - - - - -
-200bp - -- - - -
-300bp - -- - - -

bp-basis points

The table above indicates that at December 31,,46QBe event of a 100 basis point increase ier@xt rates, we would experience a 3.21%
increase in NPV.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolaged in the above interest rate risk measurervadeling changes in NPV require
making certain assumptions that may or may noécethe manner in which actual yields and costsaed to changes in market interest re
In this regard, the NPV table presented assuméshtbaomposition of our interesensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgifm@ing of a
period remains constant over the period being medsand assumes that a particular change in intertes is reflected uniformly across the
yield curve regardless of the duration or repriaigpecific assets and liabilities. Accordinglithaugh the NPV table provides an indicat
of our interest rate risk exposure at a particptznt in time, such measurements are not intendead do not provide a precise forecast of
the effect of changes in market interest rateswmet interest income, and will differ from actwesults.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements identified in Item 15(x}{&reof are included as Exhibit 13 and are inc&feal hereunder.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A.(T) CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €fj Chief Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer, we evaluated the effeeness of the design and operation of our dsseie controls and procedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exch&mgeas of the end of the fiscal year (the "EvalhmatDate"). Based upon that evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officand Principal Accounting Officer concluded thes,of the Evaluation Date, our
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disclosure controls and procedures were effectivtariely alerting them to the material informatietating to us (or our consolidated
subsidiaries) required to be included in our ped@&EC filings.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Cordx@r Financial Reporting

Management of BCB Bancorp, Inc., and subsidiaties (Company") is responsible for establishing araintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. The Company's systermtdrinal control is designed under the supervisiamanagement, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, taopide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabiliour financial reporting and the
preparation of the Company's financial statememtgstternal reporting purposes in accordance with denerally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP").

Our internal control over financial reporting indks policies and procedures that pertain to thete@@nce of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactiamsl dispositions of assets; provide reasonableasses that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stateisiin accordance with GAAP, and that receiptseamenditures are made only in
accordance with the authorization of managementlm@oard of Directors; and provide reasonablarasge regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, oral#pon of the Company's assets that could havatanml effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Projections on any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that the controls may becomeééaaate because of changes in conditiol
that the degree of compliance with policies andedures may deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2008, management assessed¢letaness of the Company's internal control divemcial reporting based upon the
framework established in Internal Control - InteégchFramework issued by the Committee of Sponsddirganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based upon its assessment, mauesny believes that the Company's internal cootret financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008 is effective using these critditiés annual report does not include an attestagport of the company's registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control overdfirtial reporting. Management's report was not stiltgeattestation by the company's
registered public accounting firm pursuant to terapprules of the Securities and Exchange Commisiat permit the company to provide
only management's report in this annual report.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls over Financial &&pg.

There were no significant changes made in ourralerontrols during the period covered by this repo, to our knowledge, in other factors
that has materially affected or is reasonably Jikelmaterially affect, the Company's internal eohbver financial reporting.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 1lI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics thatesptgithe Company's principal executive officemgipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller or persons perfirgnsimilar functions. The Code of Ethics is avhitafor free by writing to: President and
Chief Executive Officer, BCB Bancorp, Inc., 104-1A%enue C, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002. The Codé¢hi¢Eis filed as an exhibit to this
Form 10-K.

The "Proposal I--Election of Directors" sectiontbé Company's definitive Proxy Statement for thenpany's 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (the "2009 Proxy Statement”) is inooaped herein by reference in response to theadisod requirements of Items 401, 405,
406, 407(d)(4) and 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K.

The information concerning directors and executifficers of the Company under the caption "Propégdection of Directors" and
information under the captions "Section 16(a) BeiefOwnership Compliance” and "The Audit Commnettef the 2009 Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

There have been no changes during the last yehe iprocedures by which security holders may recentmominees to the Company's
board of directors.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The "Executive Compensation” section of the Com{=a2909 Proxy Statement is incorporated hereirebsrence.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The "Proposal I--Election of Directors" sectiontbé Company's 2009 Proxy Statement is incorpottageein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The "Transactions with Certain Related Persondi@®eand "Proposal I-Election of Directors--Boardiépendence” of the Company's 2009
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by Item 14 is incorporatedrbference to the Company's Proxy Statement foR@#9 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
"Proposal lI-Ratification of the Appointment of legendent Auditors--Fees Paid to Beard Miller ConggarP."

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(2) Financial Statements

The exhibits and financial statement scheduled fig a part of this Form 10-K are as follows:

(A) Report of Independent Registered Public AccounEirm

(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condiierof December 31, 2008 and 2007

(C) Consolidated Statements of Income for eachefvtears in the Three-Year period ended Decemhe2(B18

(D) Consolidated Statements of Changes in StoclensldEquity for each of the Years in the Three-Ymaiod ended December 31, 2008
(E) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for efthe Years in the Three-Year period ended Dece®3bge2008

(F) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are noinedjor applicable, or the required informatiosiewn in the consolidated statements o
notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of BCB Bancorpg Itt**
3.2 Bylaws of BCB Bancorp, Inc.**

3.3 Specimen Stock Certificate*

10.1 BCB Community Bank 2002 Stock Option Plan***
10.2 BCB Community Bank 2003 Stock Option Plan***
10.3 2005 Director Deferred Compensation Plan****
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10.4 Change in Control Agreement with Donald Mit¢ifar++*

10.5 Change in Control Agreement with James E.i@gftr****

10.6 Change in Control Agreement with Thomas M. @i*******

10.7 Executive Agreement with Donald Mindiak*******

10.8 Executive Agreement with James E. Colling**##*

10.9 Executive Agreement with Thomas M. Coughlin#

10.10 Amendment to 2002 and 2003 Stock Option P1&fts

13 Consolidated Financial Statements

14 Code of Ethics***

21 Subsidiaries of the Company****

23 Accountant's Consent to incorporate consolidfieshcial statements in Form S-8
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer puesu to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02200

31.2 Certification of Principal Accounting Officpursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and feipal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 986he Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K-12d@&dfiwith the Securities and Exchange CommissioManp 1, 2003.
** Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K fileith the Securities and Exchange Commission on l@t@2, 2007.
*** Incorporated by reference to the Annual RepamtForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

**** Incorporated by reference to the Company's Ré&gtion Statement on Form S-1, as amended, (Cesiom File Number 333-128214)
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mission on September 9, 2005.
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*++xx Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Séties and Exchange Commission on
November 10, 200t

*rxxeek Incorporated by reference to the Annual Rep@n Form 10-K for the year ended December 315200

*rxxxkx Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4,0.5, 10.6, 10.7, 10.8 and 10.9 to the Current RepoForm 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on December 15, 2008.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of #mufities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrantchag caused this report to be signed o

behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

BCB BANCORP, INC.

Date: March 27, 2009

By:

/'s/ Donald M ndi ak

Donal d M ndi ak

Presi dent, Chief Executive Oficer
and Chief Financial Oficer

(Duly Authorized Representative)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg of 1934, this report has been signed belothdjollowing persons on behalf of the

Registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signatures Ti

/s/ Donald Mindiak President, Chief Exec
--------------------------- Officer, Chief Financ
Donald Mindiak and Director (Princip

/sl Thomas M. Coughlin Vice President, Chief
--------------------------- Officer (Principal Ac
Thomas M. Coughlin Officer) and Director

/sl Mark D. Hogan Chairman of the Board

Mark D. Hogan

/s/ Robert Ballance Director

Robert Ballance

/sl Judith Q. Bielan Director

Judith Q. Bielan

tle Date

utive March 27, 2009
ial Officer

al Executive Officer)

Operating March 27, 2009
counting

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009



/sl Joseph J. Brogan Director

Joseph J. Brogan

/sl James E. Collins Director

James E. Collins

/sl Joseph Lyga Director

Joseph Lyga

/sl Alexander Pasiechnik Director

Alexander Pasiechnik

/sl August Pellegrini, Jr.  Director

August Pellegrini, Jr.

s/ Joseph Tagliareni Director

Joseph Tagliareni

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009

March 27, 2009
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[BMC LOGO]
Report of Independent Registered Publi ¢ Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
BCB Bancorp, Inc.
Bayonne, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséaits of financial condition of BCB Bancorp, InadaSubsidiaries (the "Company") as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the relatedbtidated statements of income, changes in stocknsleéquity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet0®8. The Company's management is responsibtbdee consolidated financial
statements. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementadas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&bagdards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétdipard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheotisolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. The Company is not reguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, arn afids internal control over financial
reporting. Our audit included consideration of intd control over financial reporting as a basisdesigning audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tingpse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveidéshe Company's internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit also includes examining, oest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fighstatements, assessing the accounting prinaigled and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall dioladed financial statement presentation. We belighat our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial posi
of BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer3the 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated restitteed operations and their cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period émcember 31, 2008, in conformity with accounfimgciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

/sl Beard M|l er Conpany LLP
Beard M || er Conpany LLP

d ark, New Jersey
March 25, 2009



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Assets
Cash and amounts due from depository institution
Interest-bearing deposits

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Securities available for sale

Securities held to maturity, fair value $143,245
respectively

Loans held for sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan loss
respectively

Premises and equipment

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock

Interest receivable

Real Estate Owned

Deferred income taxes

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders'
Liabilities
Non-interest bearing deposits
Interest bearing deposits

Total deposits

Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, stated value $0.064; 10,000,000 sh
5,183,731 and 5,078,858 shares, respectively,
Paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost, 533,680 and 440,651 sha
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

2008 2007
(In Thousands, except fo r share
data and per share da ta)
S $ 3,495 $ 2,970
3,266 8,810
6,761 11,780
888 2,056
and $165,660
141,280 165,017
1,422 2,132
es of $5,304 and $4,065
406,826 364,654
5,627 5,929
5,736 5,560
3,884 3,776
1,435 287
3,113 1,352
1,652 934
$ 578,624 $ 563,477
Equity
$ 30,561 $ 35,897
379,942 362,922
410,503 398,819
2,000 -
114,124 114,124
2,282 2,024
528,909 514,967
ares authorized;
issued 331 325
46,864 45,795
res, respectively (8,680) (7,385)
11,325 9,749
(125) 26
49,715 48,510
$ 578,624 $ 563,477



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest Income
Loans, including fees
Securities
Other interest-earning assets

Total Interest Income

Interest Expense
Deposits:
Demand
Savings and club
Certificates of deposit

Borrowed money
Total Interest Expense

Net Interest Income

Provision for Loan Losses

Net Interest Income after Provision for Lo

Non-Interest Income
Fees and service charges

Gain on sales of loans originated for sale
Gain on sale of real estate owned
Other than temporary impairment on security

Other

Total Non-Interest (Loss) Income

Non-Interest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense of premises
Equipment
Advertising
Loss on overdrafts
Other

Total Non-Interest Expenses

Income before Income Taxes

Income Taxes

Net Income

Net Income per Common Share
Basic

Diluted

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstandin

Basic

Diluted

Years Ended December 31,

2008

2007

2006

(In Thousands, Except for Per Share Dat

$ 27,248 $ 24,365 $ 22,7
9,185 8,843 8,0
190 1,182 4
36,623 34,390 31,2
1,046 1,006 4
1,370 1,866 2,6
9,106 10,109 7,8
11,522 12,981 10,8
5,141 4,236 2,6
16,663 17,217 13,4
19,960 17,173 17,7
1,300 600 6
an Losses 18,660 16,573 17,1
689 629 5
137 420 6
1 13
(2,915) -

34 30
(2,054) 1,092 1,2
5,492 5,699 52
1,059 1,000 9
2,019 1,906 1,7
241 326 3
560 -

1,943 1,787 1,4
11,314 10,718 9,6
5,292 6,947 8,7
1,820 2,509 3,2

$ 3,472 $ 4,438 $ 55

$ 0.75 $ 0.92 $ 1.

$ 0.74 $ 0.90 $ 1

g

4,629 4,818 50
4,706 4,943 51



See notes to consolidated financial statements.




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergguity

Accumulated

Other
Common Paid-In Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Capital Stock Retained Earnings Income (Loss) Total

(In Thousands, except for share and per share amounts)
Balance - December 31, 2005 $ 323 $45518 $ (795) $ 2,801 $ - $47,847
Stock-based compensation -- 25 - - - 25
Stock issuance cost -- 9) - - - 9)
Exercise of stock options (12,816 shares) 1 98 -- - - 99
Treasury stock purchases (3,977 shares) -- - (64) - - (64)
Cash dividend ($0.30 per share) declared -- - -- (1,502) - (1,502)
Net income - - - 5,567 - 5,567
Balance - December 31, 2006 324 45,632 (859) 6,866 - 51,963
Stock-based compensation -- 6 - - - 6
Exercise of stock options (15,426 shares) 1 157 - - - 158
Treasury stock purchases (385,358 shares) -- - (6,526) - - (6,526)
Cash dividend ($0.32 per share) declared -- - -- (1,555) - (1,555)
Net income - - - 4,438 - 4,438
Unrealized gain on securities available for
sale, net of deferred income tax of $18 - - - - 26 26
Total Comprehensive income 4,460
Balance - December 31, 2007 325 45,795 (7,385) 9,749 26 48,510
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options -- 150 - - - 150
Exercise of stock options (104,873 shares) 6 919 - - - 925
Treasury stock purchases (93,029 shares) -- - (1,295) - - (1,295)
Cash dividend ($0.41 per share) declared -- - -- (1,896) - (1,896)
Net income - - - 3,472 - 3,472

Loss on other than temporary impairment on
security, net of deferred income tax
benefit of $1,164

Unrealized loss on securities available for
sale, net of deferred income tax of $1,266

Total Comprehensive income

Balance - December 31, 2008

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

331 $46,864 $(8,680)  $11,325

$ (125) $49,715




BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation of premises and equipment
Amortization (accretion), net
Provision for loan losses
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income tax (benefit)
Other than temporary impairment loss
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sales of loans originated fo r sale
Gain on sales of loans originated for sale
Gain on sale of real estate owned
(Increase) in interest receivable
Decrease in stock subscriptions receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest pa yable
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from repayments and calls on securities held to maturity 84,400 21,010 28

Proceeds from sales of securities held to maturi ty
Purchases of securities held to maturity

Purchases of securities available for sale

Proceeds from sales of participation interests i n loans
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned

Purchases of loans

Net increase in loans receivable

Improvements to real estate owned

Additions to premises and equipment

Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits
Proceeds of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Net change in short-term borrowings
Purchase of treasury stock
Cash dividends paid
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash E quivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Supplementary Cash Flows Information
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes
Interest
Transfer of loans to real estate owned

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 20

(In Thousands)

$ 3,472 $ 4438 $ 5

401 394
(684)  (664)

1,300 600
- 6

(1,659)  (132)
2,915 -

(6.705) (22,993) (36
7552 24257 34
137)  (420)

(1) (13)
(108)  (79)
- - 2
(718)  (258)
(59) 214
317 (191)

5,886 5,159 6

(60,606) (37,338) (37
(2,000) (2,012)
2,523 6315 5
288 1,172
(113) (9,593) (7
(46,449) (44,645) (32
(241) -
(99)  (438)
(176)  (1,836)

(22,473) (67,365) (43

11,684 16,072 19
-~ 55000 70
-~ (15,000) (50
2,000 -
(1,295)  (6,526)
(1,896) (1,555) (1
925 158

150 -

11,568 48,149 38

(5,019) (14,057)

11,780 25,837 25

$ 6,761 $ 11,780 $ 25

$ 3,903 $ 2,860 $ 3
$ 16,722 $ 17,003 $ 13
$ 1,194 $ 1,446 $

06

,567

268

,242

420

690

,147

,837

,120
,164



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1 - Organization and Stock Offerings

BCB Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is incorporatadtie State of New Jersey and is a bank holdingpamyn The common stock of the
Company is listed on the Nasdaq Electronic Bull8tirard and trades under the symbol "BCBP."

On April 27, 2005, the Company announced that thar@& of Directors had approved a stock repurchesgragm for the repurchase of up to
5% of the Company's outstanding common stock eguabproximately 187,096 shares. The repurchasgdmanade from time to time as
market conditions warrant. During 2006, 3,977 shavere purchased under the repurchase programagpsioximate cost of $64,000 or
$15.93 per share. In 2007, the Company completihttial stock repurchase plan. On April 26, 20i& Company announced a second
stock repurchase plan which provided for the refpase of 5% or 249,080 shares of the Company's constock. During 2007, the Comps
began and completed the repurchase of all of tapestassociated with the second 5% stock repurgit@seConsequently, on November 20,
2007, the Company announced a third stock repuegblas which provided for the repurchase of 5%3%,202 shares of the Company's
common stock. During 2008 and 2007, a total of 23 &nd 385,358 shares of the Company's common staskepurchased at a cost of
approximately $1.3 and $6.5 million or $13.92 at6.93 per share, respectively.

The Company's primary business is the ownershipogedation of BCB Community Bank (the "Bank"). TBank is a New Jersey
commercial bank which, as of December 31, 2008aipd at four locations in Bayonne and Hoboken, Nersey, and is subject to
regulation, supervision, and examination by the Nevsey Department of Banking and Insurance anéi¢deral Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The Bank is principally engaged inlisiness of attracting deposits from the genarblipand using these deposits, together
with borrowed funds, to invest in securities andniake loans collateralized by residential and comiakreal estate and, to a lesser extent,
consumer loans. BCB Holding Company Investment Che "Investment Company") was organized in Jan2805 under New Jersey law
as a New Jersey investment company primarily td hlestment and mortgage-backed securities.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidated Financial Statement Preseniah

The consolidated financial statements which inclideaccounts of the Company and its wholly-owndasgliaries, the Bank and the
Investment Company, have been prepared in confpmuiih accounting principles generally acceptethim United States of America. All
significant intercompany accounts and transacti@we been eliminated in consolidation.

In preparing the consolidated financial statemanemagement is required to make estimates and psismthat affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities as of the date of thesobidated statement of financial condition and rexes and expenses for the periods then e
Actual results could differ significantly from thegstimates. A material estimate that is partitpsusceptible to significant change relates to
the determination of the allowance for loan losdésnagement believes that the allowance for loasds is adequate. While management
uses available information to recognize lossesand, future additions to the allowance for loassé&s may be necessary based on changes i
economic conditions in the market area.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as aegral part of their examination process, periodijaaview the Bank's allowance for loan
losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to memgdditions to the allowance based on theirjuelgts about information available to
them at the time of their examination.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and amduatsom depository institutions and interest-begdeposits in other banks having
original maturities of three months or less.

Securities Available for Sale and Held to Maturity

Investments in debt securities that the Companyth®gpositive intent and ability to hold to matyritre classified as held to maturity
securities and reported at amortized cost. Debeguity securities that are bought and held pradtydor the purpose of selling them in the
near term are classified as trading securitiesrapdrted at fair value, with unrealized holdingrgaand losses included in earnings. Debt and
equity securities not classified as trading sei@gibor as held to maturity securities are clasgifis available for sale securities and report
fair value, with unrealized holding gains or lossest of applicable deferred income taxes, repdrtede accumulated other comprehensive
income component of stockholders' equity.

On a quarterly basis, the Company makes an assestntetermine whether there have been any evemsonomic circumstances to
indicate that a security on which there is an uized loss is impaired on an other-thgmporary basis. The Company considers many fa
including the severity and duration of the impainty¢he intent and ability of the Company to hdié security for a period of time sufficient
for a recovery in value; recent events specifithiissuer or industry; and for debt securitieterral credit ratings and recent downgrades.
Securities on which there is an unrealized loskithdeemed to be other-than-temporary are writamn to fair value with the write-down
recorded as a realized loss.

Premiums and discounts on all securities are apsaitaccreted to maturity using the interest methadrest and dividend income on
securities, which includes amortization of premiwans accretion of discounts, are recognized irctmsolidated financial statements when
earned. Gains or losses on sales are recognized bashe specific identification method.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Loans Held For Sale

Loans held for sale consist primarily of residenti@mrtgage loans intended for sale and are caatele lower of cost or estimated fair mar
value using the aggregate method. These loansaergly sold with servicing rights released. Gaind losses recognized on loan sales are
based upon the cash proceeds received and thefdbstrelated loans sold.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are carried at unpaid principkrizzes less net deferred loan origination feestla@@llowance for loan losses. Loan
origination fees and certain direct loan originatamsts are deferred and amortized, as an adjusthgield, over the contractual lives of the
related loans.

The accrual of interest on loans that are contedigtdelinquent ninety days or more is discontinaed the related loans placed on nonact
status. Income is subsequently recognized onlggektent that cash payments are received untilgiedncy status is reduced to less than
ninety days, in which case the loan is returneactrual status.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is increased thrquighisions charged to operations and by recoveifi@sy, on previously charged-off loans
and reduced by charge-offs on loans which are ahited to be a loss in accordance with Bank policy.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel leonsidered adequate to absorb loan losses.déarent, in determining the allowance
loan losses, considers the risks inherent in &8s jportfolio and changes in the nature and voluhits ¢oan activities, along with the general
economic and real estate market conditions. Thé& Bélizes a two tier approach: (1) identificatiohimpaired loans and establishment of
specific loss allowances on such loans; and (2bishment of general valuation allowances on ¢meainder of its loan portfolio. The Bank
maintains a loan review system which allows foedquic review of its loan portfolio and the eadigntification of potentially impaired
loans. Such a system takes into considerationistnt limited to, delinquency status, size of lmamnd types and value of collateral and
financial condition of the borrowers. Specific Idass allowances are established for identifieth$ddased on a review of such information
and/or appraisals of the underlying collateral. &ahloan loss allowances are based upon a contnnait factors including, but not limited
to, actual loan loss experience, composition ofdh@ portfolio, current economic conditions, andrmagement's judgment. Although
management believes that adequate specific andajelewances for loan losses are establishedahkisses are dependent upon future
events and, as such, further additions to the lefvspecific and general loan loss allowances neagdressary.

Impaired loans are measured based on the predertafeexpected future cash flows discounted atdhe's effective interest rate, or as a
practical expedient, at the loan's observable nmamiee or the fair value of the collateral if thoan is collateral dependent. A loan evaluated
for impairment is deemed to be impaired when, basecurrent information and events, it is probahkg the Bank will be unable to collect
all amounts due according to the contractual tevhtke loan agreement. All loans identified as img@are evaluated independently. The
Bank does not aggregate such loans for evaluatigmoges. Payments received on impaired loans atedfirst to accrued interest
receivable and then to principal.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany and its subsidiaries to concentratiorsedit risk consist of cash and cash
equivalents, investment and mortgage-backed sexuahd loans.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts pladcdhighly rated financial institutions. Securitieslude securities backed by the U.S.
Government and other highly rated instruments. B&ek's lending activity is primarily concentrateddans collateralized by real estate in
the State of New Jersey. As a result, credit sdiroadly dependent on the real estate market @mergl economic conditions in the State.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings, building impeowents, leasehold improvements and furniture, fiedand equipment are carried at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and amortizatiomifiignt renovations and additions are chargethéoproperty and equipment account.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expenge iperiod incurred. Depreciation charges are coeapanh the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives of each type adets

Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 7-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-40
Leasehold improvements Shorter of us eful
life or term of lease

Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of New York Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of the.Bldystem to hold stock of its district FHLB accimgl to a predetermined formula. Such
stock is carried at cost.

Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foosares are held for sale and are initially recoratefdir value less cost to sell at the date of
foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Sulesedqa foreclosure, valuations are periodicallyf@ened by management and the assets are
carried at the lower of carrying amount or fairueless cost to sell. Revenue and expenses fromatapes and changes in the valuation
allowance are included in net expenses from fosmtd@assets. At December 31, 2008, the Bank ownegmperty totaling $1,435,000.

Interest Rate Risk

The Bank is principally engaged in the businesatwécting deposits from the general public andgishese deposits, together with other
funds, to make loans secured by real estate apdrthase securities. The potential for interes-rsk exists as a result of the difference in
duration of the Bank's interest-sensitive lialBkticompared to its interest-sensitive assets.hiraason, management regularly monitors the
maturity structure of the Bank's interest-earniagess and interest-bearing liabilities in ordemtasure its level of interest-rate risk and to
plan for future volatility.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolill&eeral income tax return. Income taxes are atkatto the Company and its subsidiaries
based upon their respective income or loss includéae consolidated income tax return. Separatie shcome tax returns are filed by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Federal and state income tax expense has beemedoon the basis of reported income. The amoufiested on the tax returns differ from
these provisions due principally to temporary défeces in the reporting of certain items for finahoeporting and income tax reporting
purposes. The tax effect of these temporary difiegs is accounted for as deferred taxes applitalfigure periods. Deferred income tax
expense or (benefit) is determined by recogniziefgied tax assets and liabilities for the estimhditure tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement cagrgimounts of existing assets and liabilities amd tlrespective tax bases. Deferred tax as
and liabilities are measured using enacted tas @tpected to apply to taxable income in the yimanghich those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effectedarred tax assets and liabilities of a changevirates is recognized in earnings in the
period that includes the enactment date. The @iz of deferred tax assets is assessed and atioalallowance provided, when necessary,
for that portion of the asset which is not morelykthan not to be realized.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adoptegtbeisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accoungtifor Uncertainty in Income Taxe:
The Interpretation provides clarification on acctig for uncertainty in income taxes recognizedinenterprise's financial statements in
accordance with FASB No. 109, "Accounting for In@iiraxes." The Interpretation prescribes a recagnitireshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognitionl ameasurement of a tax position taken or expdoteeé taken in a tax return, and also
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatinterest and penalties, accounting in interimgsj disclosure and transition. The
Company has evaluated its tax positions as of Jgriy2007, December 31, 2007 and December 31,,288Bectively. A tax position is
recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likéhan not" that the tax position would be sustaiimea tax examination, with a tax examination
being presumed to occur. The amount recognizdtkitargest amount of tax benefit that has a likethof being realized on examination of
more than 50 percent. For tax positions not medtieg'more likely than not" test, no tax benefitéasorded. Under the "more-likely-thaiot"
threshold guidelines, the Company believes no ggmit uncertain tax positions exist, either indivally or in the aggregate, that would give
rise to the non-recognition of an existing tax dgnAs of January 1, 2007, December 31, 2007 aaddinber 31, 2008, respectively, the
Company had no material unrecognized tax benefiggeorued interest and penalties. The Company répeg)interest and penalties on
unrecognized tax benefits in income taxes expangieei Consolidated Statement of Income. The Comgahpot recognize any interest and
penalties for the year ended December 31, 200@60d. The tax years subject to examination bydRing authorities are the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Net Income per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted average numbahafes of common stock
outstanding. The diluted net income per commonesisacomputed by adjusting the weighted averagebeumf shares of common stock
outstanding to include the effects of outstandioglsoptions, if dilutive, using the treasury stookthod. For the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006, the difference in the weightextage number of basic and diluted common sheaesiue solely to the effects of
outstanding stock options. No adjustments to nedrime were necessary in calculating basic and dilng income per share.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company, under plans approved by its stockinelihe2003 and 2002, has granted stock optionsnfgd@yees and outside directors. See
note 12 for additional information as to optionmga Through December 31, 2005, the Company aceduat options granted using the
intrinsic value method, in accordance with AccongtPrinciples Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accding for Stock Issued to
Employees," and related interpretations. Under ARRB25, generally, when the exercise price of tbenGany's stock options equaled the
market price of the underlying stock on the datthefgrant, no compensation expense was recogroedrdingly, prior to January 1, 2006,
no compensation expense has been reflected ime@ne for the options granted as all such grante ba exercise price equal to the market
price of the underlying stock at the date of grant.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of FiabfAictounting Standards ("Statement”) No. 123(R)githe modified prospective

method and, accordingly, implemented a policy ebrding compensation expense for all new awardstgdeand any awards modified after
January 1, 2006. In addition, the transition ruirder Statement No. 123(R) require that, for athals outstanding at January 1, 2006, for
which the requisite service had not yet been radjerompensation cost be recorded as such sesvieadered after January 1, 2006.
Statement No. 123(R) also requires that the benefitealized tax deductions in excess of previpotstognized tax benefits on compensation
expense are to be reported as a financing cashréither than an operating cash flow, as previotesiyired. In accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107, the Companyassifies share-based compensation within salangégmployee benefits and directors
compensation expenses to correspond with the sam#dms as the cash compensation paid to sudvidodls.

Compensation expense recognized for all optiontgriamet of estimated forfeitures and is recoghimeer the awards' respective requisite
service periods. The fair values relating to aliaps granted are estimated using a Black-Schg@sropricing model. Expected volatilities
are based on historical volatility of our stock amler factors, such as implied market volatil&g. permitted by SAB No. 110, we use the
mid-point of the original vesting period and origimption life to estimate the options' expectachtenvhich represents the period of time that
the options granted are expected to be outstan@ihmgyrisk-free rate for periods within the contredtlife of the option is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of graffe recognize compensation expense for the faiegaof these option awards, which have
graded vesting, on a straight-line basis over ¢ogiisite service period of these awards.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)
Comprehensive Income

The Company records unrealized gains and lossesf deferred income taxes, on securities availédrisale in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Realized gains and lossasyifare reclassified to non-interest income wgada of the related securities or upon the
recognition of an impairment loss. The Companyéiasted to report the effects of other comprehenisigcome in the consolidated statem

of changes in stockholders' equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&aiard ("FASB") issued Statement No. 160 "Nonaihitg Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements--an amendment of ARB No. bhiis Statement establishes accounting and repastargdards for the noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidatiba subsidiary. The guidance will become effectis of the beginning of a company's
fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. Chmpany believes that this new pronouncement willrave a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 162¢"Mrerarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Primes.” This Statement identifies
the sources of accounting principles and the fraomkvior selecting the principles used in the prafian of financial statements. This
Statement is effective 60 days following the SEApgroval of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbard amendments to AU Section
411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in ConformitighwGenerally Accepted Accounting Principles.” Tbempany believes that this new
pronouncement will not have a material impact erc@nsolidated financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi&$P") EITF 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instrune@ranted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securiti€his FSP clarifies that all outstanding unvestealrs-based payment awards that contain
rights to nonforfeitable dividends participate imdistributed earnings with common shareholders. iiwaf this nature are considered
participating securities and the two-class methiocbanputing basic and diluted earnings per sharstioe applied. This FSP is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Cbhepany does not expect that EITF 03-6-1 will hamémpact on its consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2008, the SEC released a proposed rgadegarding the potential use by U.S. issueriahtial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards ("IFRS"). IFRS is a comprehensive sefie&oounting standards published by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASBInder the proposed roadmap, the Company magdpgred to prepare financial
statements in accordance with IFRS as early as. 201SEC will make a determination in 2011 regagdhe mandatory adoption of IFRS.
The Company is currently assessing the impacthi&potential change would have on its consoliditgancial statements, and it will
continue to monitor the development of the potéirtiplementation of IFRS.

In November 2008, the FASB ratified Emerging Isstiask Force ("EITF") Issue No. 08-6, "Equity Methoglestment Accounting
Considerations". EITF 08-6 clarifies the accounfimgcertain transactions and impairment considematinvolving equity method
investments. EITF 08-6 is effective for fiscal y@beginning after December 15, 2008, with earlyptida prohibited. The Company does not
expect that EITF 08-6 will have an impact on itesalidated financial statements.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie§Continued)

In November 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue R8-7, "Accounting for Defensive Intangible Asset&ITF 08-7 clarifies the accounting
for certain separately identifiable intangible assehich an acquirer does not intend to actively lust intends to hold to prevent its
competitors from obtaining access to them. EITF@8¢quires an acquirer in a business combinati@ttount for a defensive intangible a
as a separate unit of accounting which should bartarad to expense over the period the asset ditmési in value. EITF 08-7 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 200&) wétrly adoption prohibited. This new pronouncengtitimpact the Company's
accounting for any defensive intangible assetsiaedjin a business combination completed begindarmgary 1, 2009.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 14@4aA%$B Interpretation ("FIN") 46(R)-8, "Disclosurbg Public Entities (Enterprises)
about Transfers of Financial Assets and Interestéariable Interest Entities". FSP SFAS 140-4 ald 46(R)-8 amends FASB SFAS 140
"Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finahéiasets and Extinguishments of Liabilities", tgquée public entities to provide additiot
disclosures about transfers of financial assetdstt amends FIN 46(R), "Consolidation of Varidieerest Entities”, to require public
enterprises, including sponsors that have a varigberest in a variable interest entity, to prevatiditional disclosures about their
involvement with variable interest entities. Additally, this FSP requires certain disclosures tprogided by a public enterprise that is

(a) a sponsor of a qualifying special purpose gitBPE") that holds a variable interest in thelifyiag SPE but was not the transferor of
financial assets to the qualifying SPE and (b)raiser of a qualifying SPE that holds a significaatiable interest in the qualifying SPE but
was not the transferor of financial assets to taifying SPE. The disclosures required by FSP SEAS4 and FIN 46(R)-8 are intended to
provide greater transparency to financial statereats about a transferor's continuing involvermétit transferred financial assets and an
enterprise's involvement with variable interesiterst and qualifying SPEs. FSP SFAS 140-4 and AR} is effective for reporting periods
(annual or interim) ending after December 15, 200& adoption of this pronouncement did not haweagerial impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In January 2009, the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-2@&thendments to the Impairment of Guidance of EI$suke No. 99-20". FSP EITF 99-
20-1 amends the impairment guidance in EITF Issoie99-20, "Recognition of Interest Income and Impaint on Purchased Beneficial
Interests and Beneficial Interests That ContinuBed-eld by a Transferor in Securitized Financiabéts", to achieve more consistent
determination of whether an other-than-temporanyainment has occurred. FSP EITF 99-20-1 also retain emphasizes the objective of an
other-thantemporary impairment assessment and the relatetbslise requirements in SFAS No. 115, "AccountimgGertain Investments
Debt and Equity Securities", and other related goag. FSP EITF 99-20-1 is effective for interim amehual reporting periods ending after
December 15, 2008, and shall be applied prospégtiRetrospective application to a prior interimasmual reporting period is not permitted.
The adoption of EITF 99-20-1 did not have a matémgact on our consolidated financial statements.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 3 - Related Party Transactions

The Bank leases a property from NEW BAY LLC ("NEVAB"), a limited liability corporation 100% owned kaymajority of the directors
and officers of the Bank. In conjunction with tlease, NEW BAY substantially removed the pre-existitructure on the site and constructed
a new building suitable to the Bank for its bankomerations. Under the terms of the lease, theafdkis project was reimbursed to
NEWBAY by the Bank. The amount reimbursed, whickhweed during the year 2000, was approximately IR and is included i

property and equipment under the caption "Buildind improvements" (see Note 7).

The original lease term began on November 1, 2800 ,concluded on October 31, 2005. On May 1, 20@5Company renegotiated the le
to a twenty-five year term. The Company will pay\NBAY $165,000 a year ( $13,750 per month) forfiret 60 months. The rent shall be
reset every five years thereafter at the fair mamdetal value at the end of each preceding fivar yperiod.

Note 4 - Securities Available for Sale

December 31, 20 08
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealiz ed
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Equity securities $ 1,097 $ - $ 2 09 $ 888
December 31, 20 07
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealiz ed
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Equity securities $2,012 $ 4 3% - $ 2,056

The age of unrealized losses and fair value ofedlaecurities available for sale were as follows:

Less than 12 Months  More t han 12 Months Total

Fair  Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(InT housands)

December 31, 2008
Preferred Stock $ 791 $ 209 $ -- $ - $791 $ 209

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 4 - Securities Available for Sale (Continued)

At December 31, 2008, management concluded thatrttealized losses above (which relate to one gigstie) are temporary in nature as
they primarily relate to general market fluctuaioAdditionally, the Company has the ability antbit to hold these securities for a time
necessary to recover their cost.

During 2008, there was a pre-tax other than temgonapairment (OTTI) charge recorded of $2.9 million the $3.0 million investment in
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) preder stock. The OTTI charge resulted from a sigaiftadecline in the market value of
these securities following the announcement byFéderal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA) that FNMA Vaoloe placed under
conservatorship. Additionally, the FHFA eliminatibé payment of dividends on common stock and predestock and assumed the powers
of the Board and management of FNMA. Based on tfeeters, the Company evaluated the impairmenttaar shan temporary.

Note 5 - Securities Held to Maturity

December 31, 2008

Gross Gross
Amortiz ed Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands)
U.S. Government Agencies:

Due after one through five years $ 63 15 $ 323 $ - $ 6,638
Due after five through ten years 6,0 00 6 -- 6,006
Due after ten years 86,2 92 449 198 86,543

98,6 07 778 198 99,187

Mortgage-backed securities:

Due after one year through five years 88 2 -- 90
Due after five years through ten years 2,3 36 81 - 2,417
Due after ten years 40,2 49 1,144 - 41,393
42,6 73 1,227 - 43,900
$141,2 80 $ 2,005 $ 198 $ 143,087

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5 - Securities Held to Maturity (Continued)

Amortiz
Cost

U.S. Government Agencies:

Due within one year $ 4,0

Due after one through five years 25,3

Due after five through ten years 15,9

Due after ten years 84,8
130,1

Mortgage-backed securities:

Due after one year through five years 1
Due after five years through ten years 1,3
Due after ten years 33,3
34,8
$165,0

December 31, 2007

Gross Gross
ed Unrealized Unrealized
Gains Losses Fair Value

(In Thousands)

00 $ - $ 1 $ 3,999
12 153 12 25,453
88 25 20 15,993
56 744 23 85,577
56 922 56 131,022
57 3 - 160

34 29 -- 1,363
70 28 283 33,115
61 60 283 34,638

17 $ 982 $ 339 $ 165,660

There were no sales of securities during the yeadsed December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. At Dece®ih@008 and 2007, mortgage-
backed securities with a carrying value of appratety $759,000 and $924,000, respectively, werdgad to secure public deposits (see

Note 10 for information on securities pledged forrbwings).

The age of unrealized losses and fair value ofgdlaecurities held to maturity were as follows:

Less than 12 Months More th

Fair Unrealized Fair
Value Losses  Value

December 31, 2008
U.S. Government
Agencies $16,301 $ 198 $ --

$16,301 $ 198 $ --

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

an 12 Months Total

Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Losses Value Losses

usands)
$ -- $16,301 $ 198
$ - $16,301 $ 198

16



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 5 - Securities Held to Maturity (Continued)

December 31, 2007:
U.S. Government

Agencies $ - $ - 81
Mortgage-backed
securities 7291 10 1

1,440 $56 $11,440 $56

6,592 273 23,883 283

At December 31, 2008, management concluded thatritealized losses above (which related to 4 Ud&e@iment Agency bonds) are
temporary in nature since they are not relateti¢aunderlying credit quality of the issuers and@oenpany has the ability and intent to hold
these securities for a time necessary to recoedr ¢hst. The losses above are primarily relateddoket interest rates.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 6 - Loans Receivable

December 31,

(In Thousands)

Real estate mortgage:

Residential $ 74,039 $55,248
Commercial 223,179 208,108
Construction 62,483 49,984

Commercial:
Business loans 10,859 17,933
Lines of credit 3,239 1,940
14,098 19,873
Consumer:
Passbook or certificate 297 92
Home equity lines of credit 5,564 4,343
Home equity 32,501 31,054
Automobile 93 51
Personal 76 93
38,531 35,633
Deposit overdrafts 454 503
Total Loans 412,784 369,349
Deferred loan fees, net (654)  (630)
Allowance for loan losses (5,304) (4,065)

$406,826 $364,654

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, loans serviced &Btnk for the benefit of others, which consispaifticipation interests in loans
originated by the Bank, totaled approximately $1%,200 and $10,451,000.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 6 - Loans Receivable (Continued)

The Bank grants loans to its officers and directord to their associates. Related party loans aderon substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral, as thaseailing at the time for comparable transactioiith wnrelated persons and do not involve
more than normal risk of collectibility. The actiiwith respect to loans to directors, officers asdociates of such persons, is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007
(In Thousands)
Balance - beginning $ 6825 $ 8,575
Loans originated 1,598 1,566
Collections of principal (1,362) (3,316)
Balance - ending $ 7,061 $ 6,825

The following is an analysis of the allowance foar losses:

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(In Thousands)

Balance - beginning $4,065 $ 3,733 $ 3,090
Provision charged to operations 1,300 600 625
Recoveries of loans previously charged off 40 17 85
Loans charged off (101) (285) (67)

Balance - ending $5304 $ 4,065 $ 3,733

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, nonaccrual loanw/ficch the accrual of interest had been discontirtotaled approximately $3,728,000
and $3,754,000, respectively. Had these loans pedarming in accordance with their original terrti® interest income recognized for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 waukl been approximately $289,000, $287,000, an@®@6respectively. Intere
income recognized on such loans was approximate3g $00, $64,000, and $6,000, respectively. ThekBanot committed to lend
additional funds to the borrowers whose loans teen placed on a nonaccrual status. At Decemb&08B, and 2007, loans which were
ninety days or more past due and still accruingrest totaled $0 and $519,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, impaired loans %8ré28,000 and $3,754,000, respectively, and tlageck specific allocation of allowan
for loan losses totaled $881,000 and $728,000emtsely. There were no impaired loans which ditimeove a specific allocation of the
allowance for loan losses. During the years endeckhber 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the averagedaatdrimpaired loans was $2,759,000,
$2,104,000, and $568,000 respectively, and intémestme recognized during the period of impairntetdled $138,000, $64,000, and $6,(
respectively.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 7 - Premises and Equipment

December 31,

(In Thousands)

Land $ 890 $ 890
Buildings and improvements 3,572 3,558
Leasehold improvements 976 976
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,366 2,281
7,804 7,705
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,177) (1,776)

Buildings and improvements include a building constied on property leased from a related party k&zte 3).

Rental expenses related to the occupancy of prertosaled $415,000, $413,000, and $386,000 foydlaes ended December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2006, respectively. The minimum obligation urldase agreements expiring through April 30, 2@8deach of the years ended
December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2009 $ 425

2010 366
2011 244
2012 237
2013 165

Thereafter 2,860

Note 8 - Interest Receivable

December 31,

2008 2007

(In Thousands)

Loans $2,284 $2,048
Securities 1,600 1,728

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9 - Deposits

December 31,

(In Thousands)

Demand:
Non-interest bearing $ 30,561 $ 35,897
NOwW 25,843 20,260
Money market 19,539 27,697
75,943 83,854
Savings and club 99,586 100,441
Certificates of deposit 234,974 214,524

$ 410,503 $ 398,819

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, certificates of diéd $100,000 or more totaled approximately $368,000 and $102,830,000,
respectively.

The scheduled maturities of certificates of depasibecember 31, 2008, were as follows (in thousgnd

Amount
2009 $ 188,112
2010 31,181
2011 7,396
2012 420
2013 7,815
Thereafter 50
$ 234,974

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 10 - Short-Term Borrowings and Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,

(In Thousands)
Long-term debt:

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB") Fixe d Rate

Repurchase Agreements:

4.50% maturing May 22, 2016 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
4.30% maturing August 16, 2016 20,000 20,000
4.17% maturing August 31, 2016 25,000 25,000
4.76% maturing June 18, 2017 20,000 20,000
4.30% maturing July 30, 2017 15,000 15,000
4.08% maturing July 30, 2017 20,000 20,000

Trust preferred floating rate junior
subordinated debenture maturing
June 17, 2034; interest rate adjusts
quarterly to LIBOR plus 2.65% (4.52% at
December 31, 2008 and 7.64% at
December 31, 2007) 4,124 4,124

$ 114,124 $ 114,124

The trust preferred debenture is callable, at t@any's option, on June 17, 2009, and quarteeetfter.

At December 31, 2008, the Bank has available tiwatborrowing facilities aggregating $113,059,08dnf the FHLB of New York, an
overnight line of credit and a companion commitménth of which expire on July 31, 2009. There $2$00,000 and $0 outstanding under
these borrowing facilities at December 31, 2008 207, respectively.

Additional information regarding short-term borrags is as follows:

December 31,

2008 2007 2006

(In Thousands)

Average balance outstanding during the year $ 4,796 - $ 705
Highest month-end balance during the year 20,500 - 1,000
Average interest rate during the year 1.23% -- 4.93%
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.44% -- -

At December 31, 2008 and 2007 securities held tmmtygwith a carrying value of approximately $1809,000 and $146,811,000,
respectively, were pledged to secure the abovalriedderal Home Loan Bank of New York borrowings.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 11 - Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capigguirements administered by the federal banking&gs. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, argbipdy additional discretionary, actions by regotatthat, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Bank. Under capital adequagglelines and the regulatory framework for prowgtrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitatmeasures of the Bank's assets, liabilities,canihin off-balance-sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Bardgdtal amounts and classifications are also suljegualitative judgments by the regulal
about components, risk weightings, and other factor

Quantitative measures, established by regulati@msaire capital adequacy, require the Bank to miaiminimum amounts and ratios of T¢
and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulatiots)jsk-weighted assets, (as defined), and of Tieapital to average assets (as defined). The
following table presents information as to the Bardapital levels.

To be Well Capitalized
under Prompt
For Capital Adequacy Correct ive Action
Actual Purposes Prov isions
Amount Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in Thousands)

As of December 31, 2008:
Total capital (to risk-weighted

assets) $ 58,66 7 14.63% $ 32,079 =>8.00% $=>40,098 =>10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 53,64 2 13.38 =>16,039 =>4.00 =>24,059 =>6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 53,64 2 9.22 =>23,282 =>4.00 =>29,102 =>5.00

As of December 31, 2007:
Total capital (to risk-weighted

assets) $ 53,76 1 14.12% $ =>30,457 =>8.00% $ =>38,072 =>10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted

assets) 49,69 6 13.05 =>15,228 =>4.00 =>22,843 =>6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 49,69 6 8.81 =>22,566 =>4.00 =>28,207 =>5.00

As of December 31, 2008, the most recent notificafirom the Bank's regulators categorized the Bemfwell capitalized” under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidinere are no conditions or events occurring sihaenotification that management
believes have changed the Bank's category.

Note 12 - Benefits Plan
Stock Options

The Company has two stock-related compensatiorsptha 2002 Stock Option Plan and the 2003 Stodlo®Plan (the "Plans"). All stock
options granted have a ten year term and were aldtbtb vest and become exercisable on a cumulbéiss in equal installments (20%
immediately upon grant and an additional 20% ahedc¢he four succeeding grant anniversary dafespf December 31, 2008, all options
authorized under the Plans had been granted.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Stock Options (Continued)

In anticipation of the adoption of Statement No3() on January 1, 2006, the Board of DirectorthefCompany, on December 14, 2005,
approved the accelerated vesting and exercisabilifl unvested and unexercisable stock optioastgd as a part of the Plans held by
directors, officers or employees. As a result,@pito purchase 218,195 shares of common stockhwinuld otherwise have vested and
become exercisable from time to time over the tiade years, became fully vested and immediatetyaisable on December 20, 2005. The
number of shares and exercise prices of the opsiobgct to acceleration were unchanged. The aatetboptions have exercise prices that
range from $5.29 to $11.84 per share. The accebtbgitions include 194,964 options held by directord executive officers and 23,231
options held by other employees. The acceleratidheovesting and exercisability of these optiolimieates compensation expense, net of
income tax, that would otherwise have been recomié¢iie Company's income statements for the yeadsng December 31, 2006, 2007, and
2008 of $379,000, $301,000, and $128,000, respytis required, the Company estimated the nurabeptions that were expected to be
exercised in the future which would not have bear@@sable under their original vesting terms dretéfore began recording additional
compensation expense. This estimate is updatedjoargerly basis.

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 20026086, the Company recorded $0, $6,000 ($4,000 &ix¢rand $25,000 ($15,000 after
tax) of share-based compensation expense, resgigctiv

A summary of stock option activity, adjusted taoectively reflect subsequent stock dividends ofo8:

Weighted
Number of Range of Average
Optio n Exercise Exercise
Share s Prices Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 415, 638 5.29-15.65 9.86
Options granted 2, 000 15.11 15.11
Options exercised (15, 426) 5.29-15.65 10.42
Options cancelled 2, 000) 15.60 15.60
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 400, 212 5.29-15.65 9.83
Options Exercised (104, 873) 5.29-11.84 8.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 295, 339 5.29-15.65 10.19

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Stock Options (Continued)

At December 31, 2008, all stock options outstandilege exercisable, having a weighted-average reéntpgontractual term of 4.8 years and
an aggregate intrinsic value of $393,000. The tataihsic value of options exercised during thangeended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, was $446,000, $85,000 and $102,000, respéctivis Company policy to issue new shares ugltare option exercise.

The weighted average grant-date fair values otbek options granted during 2007, all of whichédaxercise prices equal to the market
price of the common stock at the grant date, wstienated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing slo8uch fair value and the weighted
average assumptions used for estimating fair vateeas follows:

Years E nded December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Grant-date fair value per share N/A $ 291 N/A
Assumptions:
Expected common stock dividend yield  N/A 2.38% N/A
Expected option life N/A 5.0years N/A
Risk-free interest rate N/A 4.30% N/A
Volatility N/A 19.96% N/A

Note 13 - Dividend Restrictions

Payment of cash dividends is conditional on eamsyifigancial condition, cash needs, the discretiotihe Board of Directors, and compliance
with regulatory requirements. State and federaldad regulations impose substantial limitationgtanBank's ability to pay dividends to the
Company. Under New Jersey law, the Bank is perchtttedeclare dividends on its common stock onlgffier payment of the dividend, the
capital stock of the Bank will be unimpaired antheri the Bank will have a surplus of not less th@%6 of its capital stock or the payment of
the dividend will not reduce the Bank's surplusriBgi the 2007, the Bank paid the Company totald#inds of $8,500,000. There were no
dividends paid to the Company in 2008. The Comzaalyility to declare dividends is dependent upenatmount of dividends declared by
Bank.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 14 - Income Taxes
The components of income tax expense (benefityamemarized as follows:

Yea rs Ended December 31,

(In Thousands)

Current income tax expense:

Federal $3,0 97 $2,391 $2,998
State 3 82 250 463
3,4 79 2,641 3,461

Deferred income tax benefit:

Federal 1,3 24)  (102) (193)
State 3 35) (30) (48)
(1,6 59) (132) (241)
Total Income Taxes $1,8 20 $2,509 $3,220

The tax effects of existing temporary differendest fgive rise to significant portions of the deéerincome tax assets and deferred income ta
liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

(In Thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $2,119 $1,623
Unrealized loss on securities available for s ale 84 --
Other than temporary impairment on security 1,164 --
Other 33 10
3,400 1,633

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Depreciation 233 263
Unrealized gain on securities available for s ale -- 18
Other 54 -
287 281
Net Deferred Tax Asset $3,113 $1,352

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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The following table presents a reconciliation betw¢he reported income tax expense and the incaxexpense which would be computed
by applying the normal federal income tax rate 4#6to income before income tax expense:

Years Ended December 31,

(In Thousands)

Federal income tax expense at statutory rate $1,799 $2,362 $2,988
Increases (reductions) in income taxes resulting fr om:
State income tax, net of federal income tax effe ct 31 145 274
Other items, net (10) 2 (42)
Effective Income Tax $1,820 $2,509 $ 3,220
Effective Income Tax Rate 34.4% 36.1% 36.6%

The Investment Company commenced operations inalar2005. Under New Jersey tax law, the Investri@mpany is subject to a 3.6%
state income tax rate as compared to the 9.0%aatbich the Company and Bank are subject. Thegmiesof the Investment Company
during the year ended December 31, 2008, 20072@06, resulted in an income tax savings of appratéty $285,000, $297,000, and
$282,000 respectively, and reduced the consolidsffedtive income tax rate by approximately 5.4%8%, and 3.2%, respectively.

Note 15- Commitments and Contingencies

The Bank is a party to financial instruments witfilmlance-sheet risk in the normal course of besinto meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments primaritfide commitments to extend credit. The Bank's sMp®oto credit loss, in the event of
nonperformance by the other party to the finanaistrument for commitments to extend credit, isespnted by the contractual amount of
those instruments. The Bank uses the same crditgsoin making commitments and conditional obligas as it does for on-balance-sheet
instruments.

Outstanding loan related commitments were as fadlow

December 31,

2008 2007

(In Thousands)
Loan origination $5,692 $2,885
Construction loans in process 25,676 40,023
Unused lines of credit 14,761 14,470

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteacdcustomer as long as there is no violatioangfcondition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymgatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beimgvdrupon, total commitment amounts do not necdgsapresent future cash
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customed#wbprthiness on a case-by-case basis. The anobeotlateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Bank upon extension of creditag®d on management's credit evaluation of thetemarty. Collateral held varies but
primarily includes residential real estate promasti

The Company and its subsidiaries also have, im¢inmal course of business, commitments for senacessupplies. Management does not
anticipate losses on any of these transactions.

The Company and its subsidiaries, from time to timay be party to litigation which arises primaiitythe ordinary course of business. In
opinion of management, the ultimate dispositioswdh litigation should not have a material effattlee financial statements. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company and its subsidienées not parties to any material litigation.

Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments

Management uses its best judgment in estimatinfgih@alue of the Company's financial instrumetiswever, there are inherent weakne
in any estimation technique. Therefore, for sultty all financial instruments, the fair valuetiesates herein are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts the Company could have realizedsales transaction on the dates indicated. Theatdd fair value amounts have been
measured as of their respective year-ends andriavgeen re-evaluated or updated for purposesestthonsloidated financial statements
subsequent to those respective dates. As suchstimated fair values of these financial instruraeubsequent to the respective reporting
dates may be different than the amounts reporteddt year-end.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement NG."Fair Value Measurements”, which defines falueaestablishes a framework for
measuring fair value under GAAP, and expands dsscks about fair value measurements. Statemert3Noapplies to other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair valuasneements. The Company adopted Statement No ffEgTive for its fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2008.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FSP 157-2, "E¥e®ate of FASB Statement No. 157". FSP 157-2ykethe effective date of SFAS
157 for all non-financial assets and liabilitiescept those that are recognized or disclosed mv#ie on a recurring basis (at least annually)
to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008 iaterim periods within those fiscal years. Aslsithe Company only partially adopted
the provisions of Statement No. 157, and will bagimaccount and report for non-financial assetslafudlities in 2009. In October 2008, the
FASB issued FSP 157-3, "Determining the Fair Valtia Financial Asset When the Market for that Assélot Active", to clarify the
application of the provisions of Statement No. ib@n inactive market and how an entity would deiae fair value in an inactive market.
FSP 157-3 is effective immediately and appliehtos@ompany's December 31, 2008 consolidated finhsi@tements. The adoption of
Statement No. 157 and FSP 157-3 had no impacteartiounts reported in the consolidated financékstents.

Statement No. 157 establishes a fair value hieyatttdt prioritizes the inputs to valuation methoded to measure fair value. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quotedg®iin active markets for identical assets or lites (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measuretsle he three levels of the fair value hierarchger Statement No. 157 are as follows:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(Continued)

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markeds are accessible at the measurement dateefotiddl, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are nowvectr inputs that are observable either direatlindirectly, for substantially the full term of
the asset or liability.

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that regjiriputs that are both significant to the fair vatneasurement and unobservable (i.e.,
supported with little or no market activity).

An asset's or liability's level within the fair v hierarchy is based on the lowest level of irtpat is significant to the fair value
measurement.

For financial assets measured at fair value orarrmg basis, the fair value measurements by leithiin the fair value hierarchy used at
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices (Level 2)
in Active  Significant (Level 3)
Markets for Other  Significant
December 31, Identical Observable Unobservable
Description 2008 Assets Inputs Inputs

(In Thousands)
Securities available for sale $ 888 $ 888 $ - $

For financial assets measured at fair value onnaeuoirring basis, the fair value measurements s/ Igithin the fair value hierarchy used at
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices (Level 2)
in Active  Significant (Level 3)
Markets for Other  Significant
December 31, Identical Observable Unobservable
Description 2008 Assets Inputs Inputs

(In Thousands)

Impaired loans $ 2,847 $ - $ 2,847

As discussed above, the Company has delayed deslise requirements of non-financial assets atilliiies. Certain real estate owned with
write-downs subsequent to foreclosure are cartiégiravalue at the balance sheet date for whiehG@bmpany has not yet adopted the
provisions of Statement No. 157.

The following information should not be interpre@slan estimate of the fair value of the entire Gamy since a fair value calculation is only
provided for a limited portion of the Company'setssand liabilities. Due to a wide range of valoiatiechniques and the degree of
subjectivity used in making the estimates, compasdetween the Company's disclosures and thasthef companies may not be
meaningful. The following methods and

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

29



BCB Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements and Fair Valuesfd-inancial Instruments
(Continued)

assumptions were used to estimate the fair valiigeedCompany's financial instruments at Decemiie2808 and 2007:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Carried at Cost)

The carrying amounts reported in the balance gbeeash and short-term instruments approximatedlassets' fair values.
Securities

The fair value of securities available for salerjeal at fair value) and held to maturity (carregcamortized cost) are determined by obtaining
guoted market prices on nationally recognized stesiexchanges (Level 1), or matrix pricing (Le2&l which is a mathematical technique
used widely in the industry to value debt secusitigthout relying exclusively on quoted market pador the specific securities but rather by
relying on the securities' relationship to othendiemark quoted prices. For certain securities whighnot traded in active markets or are
subject to transfer restrictions, valuations aijestdd to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transfeilitly, and such adjustments are generally based
on available market evidence (Level 3). In the absef such evidence, management's best estimaseds Management's best estimate
consists of both internal and external supportentain Level 3 investments. Internal cash flow medsing a present value formula that
includes assumptions market participants wouldalseg with indicative exit pricing obtained fromaer/dealers (where available) were
used to support fair values of certain Level 3 stieents.

Loans Held for Sale (Carried at Lower of Cost or F& Value)

The fair value of loans held for sale is determjnelden possible, using quoted secondagrket prices. If no such quoted prices exist féfire
value of a loan is determined using quoted prioesifsimilar loan or loans, adjusted for speciftdlautes of that loan. Loans held for sale are
carried at their cost.

Loans Receivable (Carried at Cost)

The fair values of loans are estimated using distamlicash flow analyses, using market rates atdlance sheet date that reflect the credit
and interest rate-risk inherent in the loans. Rtej# future cash flows are calculated based upotraciual maturity or call dates, projected

repayments and prepayments of principal. Generfaltyariable rate loans that reprice frequentlg anth no significant change in credit rit

fair values are based on carrying values.

Impaired Loans (Generally Carried at Fair Value)

Impaired loans are those that are accounted foerURASB Statement No. 114, "Accounting by Crediforsmpairment of a Loan", in which
the Company has measured impairment generally las#tk fair value of the loan's collateral. Faitue is generally determined based upon
independent third-party appraisals of the properte discounted cash flows based upon the expecte@eds. These assets are included as
Level 3 fair values, based upon the lowest levéhpiit that is significant to the fair value measuents. The fair value consists of the loan
balances of $3,728,000, net of a valuation allowasfc$881,000. Additional provisions of $881,000Iftan losses were recorded during the
period.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FHLB of New York Stock (Carried at Cost)

The carrying amount of restricted investment inkbstock approximates fair value, and considerdithiged marketability of such securities.
Interest Receivable and Payable (Carried at Cost)

The carrying amount of interest receivable andra@giepayable approximates its fair value.

Deposits (Carried at Cost)

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits,(mgrest and noninterest checking, passbook gaxand money market accounts) are, by
definition, equal to the amount payable on demanHteareporting date (i.e., their carrying amounfg)ir values for fixed-rate certificates of
deposit are estimated using a discounted cashdédeulation that applies interest rates currending offered in the market on certificates to
a schedule of aggregated expected monthly masiotietime deposits.

Short-Term Borrowings (Carried at Cost)
The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings appnate their fair values.
Long-Term Debt (Carried at Cost)

Fair values of long-term debt are estimated usiagadinted cash flow analysis, based on quoted pfaenew long-term debt with similar
credit risk characteristics, terms and remainingunity. These prices obtained from this active netirepresent a market value that is deemed
to represent the transfer price if the liabilityr@ssumed by a third party.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments (Disclosedt Cost)

Fair values for the Bank's off-balance sheet fir@rinstruments (lending commitments and unuseekliof credit) are based on fees currently
charged in the market to enter into similar agregmdaking into account, the remaining terms efafjreements and the counterparties' c
standing. The fair value of these commitments wesesrkd immaterial and is not presented in the acaowiipg table.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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The carrying values and estimated fair valuesrwritial instruments were as follows at Decembe8@8 and 2007:

December 31,

2008 2007
Carrying Carrying
Value Fai rVValue Value Fair Value

(In Thousands)
Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,761 $ 6,761 $ 11,780 $ 11,780
Securities available for sale 888 888 2,056 2,056
Securities held to maturity 141,280 143,087 165,017 165,660
Loans held for sale 1,422 1,437 2,132 2,141
Loans receivable 406,826 413,372 364,654 367,336
FHLB of New York stock 5,736 5,736 5,560 5,560
Interest receivable 3,884 3,884 3,776 3,776
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 410,503 409,370 398,819 399,178
Short-term borrowings 2,000 2,000 - -
Long-term debt 114,124 116,317 114,124 115,679
Interest payable 967 967 1,026 1,026

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,

2008 2007
Assets (In Thousands)
Cash and due from banks $ 323 $ 2,719
Investment in subsidiaries 53,180 49,722
Restricted common stock 124 124
Other assets 242 83
Total Assets $ 53,869 $ 52,648
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Long-term debt $ 4,124 $ 4,124
Other liabilities 30 14
Total Liabilities 4,154 4,138
Stockholders' equity
Common stock 331 325
Paid-in capital 46,864 45,795
Treasury stock (8,680) (7,385)
Retained earnings 11,325 9,749
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (125) 26
Total Stockholders' Equity 49,715 48,510
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 53,869 $ 52,648

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended in December 31,

2008 2007 2006

(In Thousands)

Dividends from subsidiary $ - $8500 $ -
Interest Income 3 10 27
Total Income 3 8,510 27
Interest Expense, borrowed money 238 329 310
Stock-Based Compensation - 6 25
Other - -- 3
Total Expense 238 335 338

Income (Loss) before Income Tax Benefit and Equity
in Undistributed Earnings (Losses) of
Subsidiaries (235) 8,175 (311)

Income tax benefit 97 95 96

Income (Loss) before Equity in Undistributed

Earnings (Losses) of Subsidiaries (138) 8,270 (215)
Equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of 3,610 (3,832) 5,782
Net Income $ 3,472 $ 4,438 $ 5,567

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
in) operating activities:

Equity in undistributed (earnings) losses of
Stock based compensation
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in stock subscriptions r
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Operating Activ

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additional investment in subsidiaries

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Cash dividends paid
Purchase of treasury stock

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equiv

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006

(In Thousands)

$ 3,472 $ 4,438 $ 5,56
provided by (used

subsidiaries (3,610) 3,832 (5,78
6

- 2
(158) 8
eceivable -- - 2,35
16 2 (14
ities (280) 8,286 2,02
- - (13,00
- - (13,00
925 158 9
150 - -
(1,896) (1,555) (1,50
(1,295) (6,526) 6
(2,116) (7,923) (1,47
alents (2,396) 363 (12,45

2,719 2,356 14,80

$ 323 $2719 $ 235
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March 31,
2008
(InT
Interest income $ 9,057
Interest expense 4,380
Net Interest Income 4,677
Provision for loan losses 250

Net Interest Income after

Provision for Loan Losses 4,427
Non-interest income (loss) 248
Non-interest expenses 2,627

Income (Loss) before Income Taxes

(Benefit) 2,048
Income taxes (benefit) 744
Net Income (Loss) $ 1,304

Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 0.28

Diluted $ 0.28

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding:
Basic 4,617

Diluted 4,721

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Quarter Ended

June 30, September 30, December 31,
2008 2008 2008

housands, Except Per Share Amounts)
$ 9,012 $ 9,304 $ 9,250

4,142 4,087 4,054
4,870 5,217 5,196
300 300 450
4,570 4,917 4,746
173 (2,569) 94
2,739 2,707 3,241
2,004 (359) 1,599
728 890 (542)

$ 1276 $ (1,249) $ 2141

$ 028 $ 0.27) $ 0.46

$ 027 $ (027)$ 046

4,604 4,640 4,656

4,691 4,640 4,699
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Note 18 - Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Cotinued)

March 31,
2007
(InT
Interest income $ 8,088
Interest expense 3,896
Net Interest Income 4,192

Provision for loan losses --

Net Interest Income after

Provision for Loan Losses 4,192
Non-interest income 270
Non-interest expenses 2,477

Income before Income Taxes 1,985
Income taxes 722
Net Income $ 1,263

Net income per common share:
Basic $ 0.25

Diluted $ 0.25

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding:
Basic 5,006

Diluted 5,136

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Quarter Ended

June 30, September 30, December 31,
2007 2007 2007

housands, Except Per Share Amounts)
$ 8,259 $ 8,947 $ 9,096

4,073 4,585 4,663
4,186 4,362 4,433
- 200 400
4,186 4,162 4,033
287 261 274
2,723 2,777 2,741
1,750 1,646 1,566
624 616 547

$ 1,126 $ 1,030 $ 1,019

$ 023 % 022 % 0.22

$ 023 % 021 $ 0.21

4,849 4,743 4,676

4,982 4,862 4,794
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BCB Bancorp, Inc.
Bayonne, New Jersey

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-383201) of BCB Bancorp, Inc. of our
report dated March 25, 2009, relating to the cddatéd financial statements, which appears infbisn 10-K.

/sl Beard M|l er Conpany LLP
Beard M1l er Conmpany LLP

C ark, New Jersey
March 25, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbar@zley Act of 2002

[, Donald Mindiak, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fl8CB Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigmting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registralitdosure controls and procedures and presentidisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportiriat occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commiteregistrant's board of directors (or personfopaing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and itefpwaincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

March 27, 2009 /'s/ Donald M ndi ak

Dat e Donal d M ndi ak
Presi dent, Chief Executive Oficer and
Chief Financial Oficer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Accounting Officer Pumsnt to Section 302 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002

I, Thomas M. Coughlin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 106f/8CB Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))imtednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigmting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registralitdosure controls and procedures and presentidisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportiriat occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal daain the case of an annual report) that has madlyeaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anthlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commiteregistrant's board of directors (or personfopaing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registesaability to record, process, summarize and rtefawaincial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

March 27, 2009 /'s/ Thomas M Coughlin

Dat e Thomas M Coughlin
Princi pal Accounting Oficer



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SABANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002



Exhibit 32

Certification pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Donald Mindiak, President, Chief Executive Offieard Chief Financial Officer and Thomas M. Cough@ihjef Operating Officer of BCB
Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") each certify in hégpacity as an officer of the Company that he heigweed the annual report of the Comp
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2BD8 and that to the best of his knowledge:

(1) the report fully complies with the requiremeafsSection 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act384; and

(2) the information contained in the report faipisesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63,
Section 1350 of the United States Code, as amenyi&gction 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

March 27, 2009 /'s/ Donald M ndi ak

Dat e Presi dent, Chief Executive Oficer and
Chi ef Financial Oficer

March 27, 2009 /'s/ Thomas M Coughlin

Dat e Princi pal Accounting Oficer and
Chi ef Operating Oficer



